
 
City Council 
October 28, 2013 
Monday  

 

 
 
 
 

 Worksession 4:00 P.M. 
Committee of the Whole 5:00 P.M. 

Regular Meeting 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
  
Cowles Council Chambers 
City Hall 
491 E. Pioneer Avenue 
Homer, Alaska  
 Produced and  
Distributed by the City Clerk’s Office -10/22/2013-rk 

1



2



October/November 2013 
 

Monday 28th        CITY COUNCIL 
 Worksession 4:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., and Regular 

Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
 
 PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION  
 Site Visit to Sterling Community Recreation Center 10:30 a.m. to Noon. 
 
Wednesday 30th  PORT AND HARBOR ADVISORY COMMISSION  
 Special Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
  
Tuesday 5th  LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD 
 Regular Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
 
 PORT AND HARBOR BUILDING TASK FORCE 
 Meeting 5:30 p.m. (Public Hearing) 
 
Wednesday 6th    PLANNING COMMISSION  
 Worksession 5:30 p.m. and Regular Meeting 6:30 p.m.  
 
Thursday 7th   PERMANENT FUND COMMITTEE  
 Special Meeting 5:15 p.m. 
 
Monday 11th  CITY OFFICES CLOSED in observance of Veterans Day. 
 
Tuesday 12th     ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 Regular Meeting 6:00 p.m.  
 
Thursday 14th  PUBLIC ARTS COMMITTEE 
 Regular Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
 
 TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
 Regular Meeting 5:30 p.m. 
 
Monday 18th –  ALASKA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE CONFERENCE in Anchorage. 
Friday 22nd   
 
Wednesday 20th PORT AND HARBOR ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 Regular Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
 
Thursday 21st  LIBRARY LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE 
 Meeting 12:00 to 1:00 p.m. at Library. 
 
 PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 Regular Meeting 5:30 p.m. 
 
Saturday 23rd PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 Worksession Noon. 
 Fall Park Walk Thru HERC & Karen Hornaday Park. 
 
Monday 25th  CITY COUNCIL 
 Worksession 4:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., and Regular 

Meeting 6:00 p.m. 

3



Regular Meeting Schedule 
City Council 2nd and 4th Mondays 6:00 p.m. 

Library Advisory Board 1st Tuesday 5:00 p.m. 
Economic Development Advisory Commission 2nd Tuesday 6:00 p.m. 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 3rd Thursday of the month with exception of December 5:30 
p.m. 

Planning Commission 1st and 3rd Wednesday 6:30 p.m. 
Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 4th Wednesday 5:00 p.m.  

(May – August 6:00 p.m.) 
Transportation Advisory Committee Quarterly 3rd Tuesday 5:30 p.m. 

Public Arts Committee Quarterly 3rd Thursday 5:00 p.m. 
Lease Committee Quarterly 2nd Thursday 3:00 p.m. 

Permanent Fund Committee Quarterly 2nd Thursday 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBERS AND TERMS 
BETH WYTHE, MAYOR – 14 

FRANCIE ROBERTS, COUNCILMEMBER – 15 
BARBARA HOWARD, COUNCILMEMBER – 14 

DAVID LEWIS, COUNCILMEMBER – 14 
BRYAN ZAK, COUNCILMEMBER – 16 

BEAUREGARD BURGESS, COUNCILMEMBER – 15 
GUS VAN DYKE, COUNCILMEMBER - 16 

 
City Manager, Walt Wrede 

City Attorney, Thomas Klinkner 
 

http://www.cityofhomer-ak.gov/cityclerk home page access, Clerk’s email address is: clerk@ci.homer.ak.us 
Clerk’s office phone number: direct line 235-3130, other number 435-3106. 

4



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Homer, Alaska  October 28, 2013 
 

 

 

COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS      WORKSESSION   
491 E. PIONEER AVENUE      4:00 P.M. MONDAY  
HOMER, ALASKA       OCTOBER 28, 2013 
www.cityofhomer-ak.gov 
         MAYOR BETH WYTHE 
         COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BARBARA HOWARD 

         COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 

         CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 

                     CITY MANAGER WALT WREDE 

                       CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5

http://www.cityofhomer-ak.gov/


6



2014 BUDGET MESSAGE 

Fiscal Year 2014 

 

Introduction 

Homer City Code Section 3.05.010 requires that the City Manager provide the City Council with a budget 

proposal for the next fiscal year by the third Friday in October. HCC 3.05.011 states that the budget 

proposal should be accompanied by a budget message which summarizes the proposal, highlights 

significant changes from the previous year’s budget, and addresses other important fiscal policy 

considerations. 

The budget proposal for Fiscal Year 2014 is attached for your consideration. The Committee of the 

Whole meeting on October 14th is dedicated entirely to going over the draft budget. The Finance 

Director will be there to talk about revenue projections and to make sure everyone understands the 

budget layout and where to find the information they need. The Acting City Manager and Department 

heads will be available to discuss expenditures and overall fiscal policy. It is my goal to make sure the 

Council understands the budget and the assumptions that went into putting it together. This is a draft 

budget and is commonly referred to as the “Manager’s Budget.” Once the budget ordinance is 

introduced by Council, (scheduled for October 28), it becomes the Council’s budget and amendments 

can be made as Council deems appropriate. 

General Fund 

The draft budget contains revenue projections that we consider to be realistic and conservative. The 

projections are based upon audited numbers from Fiscal Year 2012 and revenue received so far for 

Fiscal Year 2013 through the end of September. This data is supplemented with tax and economic 

projections provided by the Borough and the State. Finally, we take into consideration information 

about economic trends provided by local sources such as the Chamber of Commerce and the Marine 

Trades Association. Based upon anecdotal information, we expect that the third quarter sales receipts 

will be significantly higher than last year. We have projected, based upon what we know, that revenues 

will increase by at least $400,000 over last year. Once again, we are preparing a budget with limited 

information regarding revenues. New property tax information and additional sales tax information will 

become available in November. Therefore, it is possible that the Council will be able make budget 

amendments based upon this new information prior to final adoption of the budget in December. 

On the expenditure side, this can basically be described as a “status quo” or “treading water” budget. 

The budget is “balanced” in the sense that expenditures do not exceed revenues. The budget is basically 

flat with the exception of the new items added which include funding for depreciation, Phase I of the IT 

upgrades, and a 2% COLA. Noteworthy expenditure reductions occurred in fuel costs and insurance 

premiums. The conservation and risk management measures we have implemented are paying off.  

7



Unfortunately, revenue limitations prevent us from proposing that important programmatic and staffing 

issues be addressed at this time. In addition to that, proposed contributions to depreciation accounts 

are less than desirable and cannot be increased unless revenue projections improve or significant 

program cuts are made. Hopefully, it will be possible to address depreciation further either before the 

budget is adopted in December or at mid-year. Once again, the Department Heads have been very 

frugal with respect to operating expenditures and keeping costs down. There are very few increases in 

line items that are discretionary. The Budget contains very lean departmental operating budgets. 

On the capital and equipment side, this budget contains proposed expenditures that begin to address 

the priority needs backlog. A description of these expenditures and a justification for them is included in 

the budget. These expenditures can be explained more fully at the Committee of the Whole meeting. 

They include repainting the 1995 backhoe, removing an underground fuel tank at the airport, and a new 

vehicle for the project manager at Public Works, a new phone system, air conditioner for the radio room 

and new squad car for the Police Department, a new gas detector and external fire escape for the Fire 

Department, new technology equipment at the Library, and Phase One / virtual server and storage 

arrays for IT. Unfortunately, I was not able to approve other worthy projects. These projects are 

included at the back of the budget and I hope to have those added soon. 

Highlights / What is and is not Included 

This section contains a list of highlighted items in the operating budget that are of great interest and 

importance to the City Administration, City employees, the Council, and the general public. These are 

issues that the Council is likely to hear much more about as the budget approval process moves forward. 

 COLAs: The budget includes a 2% COLA for all employees. The employees have not received a COLA 

for the past five years. Adding a COLA is consistent with the Council’s request that we look at the 

entire compensation package and not just focus on health insurance. The COLA helps employees 

keep up with inflation and helps to partially compensate for the pay cut contained in the health 

insurance plan amendments. The cost of living continues to rise and the value of City compensation 

continues to erode. This issue is beginning to affect the City’s ability to recruit and retain quality 

employees. I hope Council will increase the COLA if it has the opportunity. 

 Personnel: This budget does not include any new personnel, including positions requested and 

filling currently vacant positions. From a management perspective, I can tell you that we have very 

urgent needs in some departments, especially Police Dispatch, building maintenance, parks, and the 

library. 

 Depreciation: This budget contains a minimal amount of money for depreciation. The good news is 

that we were at least able to transfer some money into depreciation accounts this year. That was 

not the case last year. The fleet reserves are funded at last year’s levels. 

 Nonprofits: This budget contains funding for all nonprofits at last year’s levels. The Chamber of 

Commerce has formally requested an increase in its budget allocation. Other requests may be 

coming. None of these requests are included in this draft budget. The Council may amend this part 

of the budget as it sees fit and appropriate. 

 Money for a Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment is not included due to budget limitations. 

8



 Money requested by the Public Arts Committee for Baycrest gateway is not included due to budget 

limitations. 

Budget Priorities 

This section contains the City Manager’s budget priorities for items that are presently not included in 

the budget. If revenue projections improve before December or by mid-year 2013, I would recommend 

that the following be added to the budget. 

 Personnel: We have very serious needs in some departments, especially Police Dispatch, Public 

Works and the Library. Staffing requests from Fire Department are well supported and would 

improve public safety and public services. Parks could really use another seasonal employee. The 

top, critical priorities from my perspective are filling the vacant police dispatch position, upgrading 

the Children’s Librarian position, and getting help for building maintenance. 

 Depreciation: It is the Council’s adopted policy to provide significant funds for depreciation and I 

could not agree more. This should be addressed if more revenues become available. 

 COLA: This issue is very important for competitiveness and for the morale of City employees. 

Unfortunately, I could only find enough money for 2%. That does not keep up with inflation over the 

past five years.  

Policy Considerations 

There are several important General Fund policy consideration that I believe the Council should take 

into consideration as it moves ahead with budget discussions.  

 Health Care Costs: Rapidly escalating health insurance costs continue to consume more and more of 

the available revenues despite recent steps that were taken to restrain or reduce costs. This puts 

significant constraints on the City’s ability to address program and service delivery needs. We 

believe the amendments proposed for the health insurance plan which accompany this budget will 

address the problem in a very significant and meaningful way. We look forward to your response.  

 Core Programs: There has been a good deal of discussion lately about new programs and services 

that the public wants but the City cannot afford. The public has been asked to identify where the 

money would come from or to show that they were willing to pay for it. I think at this point, it 

would be useful to note that the City needs some of that additional revenue to take care of its most 

basic services and functions. The fact that we are continually talking about the lack of funds for 

depreciation, maintenance and repair, replacement of aging equipment, vacant positions and 

competitive compensation should be an indicator.  

 The Disconnect: There continues to be a huge public disconnect between what we want and what 

we are willing to pay for and maintain. We all love our capital projects. There is no shortage of ideas 

about new programs, new services, and new infrastructure. There are so many examples and the 

pressure continues to grow. We continue to build new stuff and make requests for more. 

Unfortunately, all of that new stuff requires money and increased staffing for maintenance and 

operations. The City’s maintenance and operations responsibilities continue to grow while the 

9



budget and staffing levels continue to stagnate and in many cases, decrease. The City staff have 

done an excellent job of increasing efficiency and “doing more with less.” However, we are getting 

very close to our limits and the point of diminishing returns. This needs further public discussion. 

Port and Harbor Enterprise Fund 

The Draft FY 2014 Budget projects that revenues will increase by approximately $200,000. We believe 

that number is very conservative and it ultimately could be significantly more than that. Most of the 

increase is related to increased activity at the Deep Water Dock which we expect to continue. This 

projection does not assume that the drilling Rig Endeavor will dock there again this year. It also does not 

include any increases in fees. An increase across the board to cover inflation is recommended and fee 

increases are also recommended by Northern Economic in their new rate study. Fees will be discussed in 

detail by the Port and Harbor Commission and it may make recommendations by the time the Budget is 

formally introduced on October 28. Revenue projections are based on actual revenue receipts in 2012 

and receipts to date in 2013. We also take into consideration current revenue trends and business 

cycles. The projected revenues are sufficient to cover basic maintenance and operations. The Enterprise 

Fund is balanced in the sense that expenditures do not exceed revenues. This Budget contains revenues 

of $4,544817 and expenditures of $4,534,344. 

Expenditures have changed very little from last year if you look solely at maintenance and operations. 

The Port and Harbor staff has been very frugal and efficient when it comes to costs that are within their 

control. The increase in overall expenses is attributable largely to a substantially larger transfer to 

depreciation reserves and to new bond payments.  This budget funds depreciation at $705,217 which is 

about $200,000 more than last year. It also transfers $300,000 into the Bond Reserves Account. In short, 

the fee increases instituted in 2012 and 2013 are doing exactly what they were intended to do; cover 

the cost of bond repayment and provide additional revenue for depreciation. Overall, the Enterprise 

Fund is in pretty good shape. There are operational needs that cannot be funded at this time but should 

be identified and prioritized. Chief among them is the need to increase staffing levels and contributions 

to depreciation accounts. 

This budget contains several relatively small capital expenditures which total $62,000. They are all 

explained and justified in the budget document and can be discussed more fully at the Committee of the 

Whole meeting. Capital improvements include maintenance cameras at the Fish Dock, a float sweeper, a 

new door on the Fish Dock cold storage unit, a used two wheel drive vehicle, and a new waste oil heater 

for the maintenance shop. 

Budget Priorities 

If the revenue picture were to change in a positive way, there are several priority items that I would 

recommend be added to the budget or receive increased funding. 

 Depreciation: The depreciation account fund balance is insufficient for the amount of assets the 

Port and Harbor owns and maintains and transfers to this account are far below what is 

recommended by the auditors. 

10



 Funding for a Port Operations Specialist.   

Budget Policy Considerations 

 Depreciation:  The depreciation fund balance remains insufficient given the assets of the Port and 

Harbor. This fund took a big hit when approximately $800,000 was transferred recently to the Port 

Bond Reserves Account. According to the Bond Bank, we should transfer that money back into the 

depreciation account. The Bond Reserve account only needs to have a balance of 1:25 times the 

annual bond payment. The City should to find ways to increase contributions to the depreciation 

fund. 

 Revenues for Operations: Fees were increased recently to cover anticipated bond payments and 

depreciation. However, this left little room for additional fee adjustments to cover increasing 

maintenance and operations costs. The City recently received the rate study it commissioned from 

Northern Economics. The study addresses maintenance and operations and the level of revenues 

that are needed to make the enterprise fund sustainable.  

 Staffing levels: Staffing levels have not changed for many years but duties and responsibilities have 

increased dramatically. Most evenings there is only one harbor officer on duty which is a bit risky 

considering the total value of not only the port and harbor assets, but the value of assets mooring in 

or otherwise using the facilities. 

 Revenues Generally: Significant structural changes are occurring in both the commercial and sport 

fishing industries. It will be important to monitor these changes and their potential impacts upon 

the revenues and business model of the port and harbor. 

Water and Sewer Special Revenue Fund 

There is good news overall about the Water and Sewer Special Revenue Fund. This proposed budget is 

balanced and there is no need to dip into the reserves, raise fees, or make unsustainable cuts to an 

already lean budget. The Fund is expected to be operating in the black in 2014 which is good news for 

all. The projected revenues are conservative. We felt that a conservative approach was necessary 

because revenues under the new rate structure are much more dependent on consumption than the 

prior fee schedule which brings with it a greater level of uncertainty. In addition we don’t know what 

effect the new schedule might have on consumer behavior. Consumption was definitely trending 

upward this year and that provide a measure of confidence in our projections. The projected revenues 

are sufficient to cover budgeted expenditures. The budget is balanced in the sense that expenditures do 

not exceed revenues. At the time this report was written, revenues were projected at $3,621,500 and 

expenditures were $3,616,062. Some last minute adjustments are anticipated before the Council 

receives the final draft. 

Expenditures for basic maintenance and operations have changed very little from last year. In fact, the 

sewer budget has actually decreased slightly. The Water and Sewer Superintendent and his staff should 

be commended for providing a very lean and efficient operating budget and for holding expenses down. 

The slight increase in expenditures is mostly attributable to increases in fixed costs. This budget 

transfers the minimal amount ($200,000) into the depreciation account. More would be desirable.   

11



The draft budget contains a number of capital expenditures which will come out of depreciation and 

fleet reserve accounts. The capital budget includes a total of about $75,000 in expenditures for sewage 

lagoon improvements, a water storage tank diffuser, a snow plow and flatbed for an existing truck, 

mixed oxidant disinfectant at the water treatment plant, and a new mid-size 4by4.  If more revenues 

become available, it is recommended that they be placed into the depreciation account. 

Policy Considerations 

 Increasing Customers: This has been discussed many times before. One of the fundamental flaws 

that needs to be addressed is that we have an expensive and expansive treatment, collection and 

distribution infrastructure and very few customers to pay for maintenance and operations. There 

are many ideas for increasing the customer base from in-filling, to expanding the system to the rest 

of the city, to identifying new buyers for bulk water. All of these ideas should be explored further. 

 Rate Model: 2014 will be the first year for the new rate structure and it should provide us with 

experience and good information as we head into 2015. We would recommend that the Council 

consider spending some funds to commission a rate study similar to the one it received for the Port 

and Harbor.      

 

 

 

        

 

   

12



 

Memorandum 13-137 

TO:              Mayor Wythe and Homer City Council 

FROM:        Walt Wrede 

DATE:          October 5, 2013 

SUBJECT:     Amendments to Employee Health Insurance Plan 

Introduction 

In June of this year, the City Council held a workshop to hear a presentation from the City’s 
insurance broker / consultant on the state of the employee health insurance plan. The picture 
presented was bleak despite recent amendments to the benefit package, the implementation 
of employee premiums, an increase in the City contribution, and the implementation of a 
new wellness program. Health care costs are rising so rapidly that it affects every decision we 
make about the budget. Health Insurance is now driving the bus. There are many factors 
contributing to this including escalating medical costs, an aging workforce, and very high 
utilization of a rich plan. 

Following is a quick recap of the workshop information. In calendar year 2012, the City 
budgeted $1,300 per employee per month for health insurance. Actual expenses for that year 
were $1,912.82 per employee per month. The City experienced cost overruns for that year of 
$641,115. In 2013 (this year), the City contribution was raised to $1,500 per employee, per 
month. The average cost was $1,871.20 per employee per month at the end of May and based 
upon that trend, it was projected that the City would lose another $371,290 in 2013. The 
Council transferred $800,000 from reserves to the self-insurance fund as part of the mid-year 
budget amendment. This transfer covered real and projected losses for these two years but it 
did little to replenish the insurance reserve fund.  

To make matters worse, the broker projected that if no changes were made to the plan, the 
cost in 2014 would be $2,050.81 per employee, per month or $2,486,588 a year. This would 
require another $600,000 and would likely result in significant budget cuts. It was clear to 
everyone that this trend is not sustainable. 

 

 
13



Page 2 of 5 
MEMORANDUM 13-137 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
Response 

The consensus of the Council was that we needed to again address rapidly rising health care 
costs. Several ideas were floated about how to approach it. The Council was informed that 
the Administration was already working on amendments to the plan for consideration. It was 
generally agreed that the best and most appropriate course of action would be for the 
administration to amend the plan and for the Council to approve it as part of the normal 
budget process. The City Manager reported that the administration’s goal was to keep the 
City contribution at the same level as 2013; $1,500 per employee, per month. The extra funds 
needed would be made up through changes in the plan and a larger employee contribution.  

Since the June workshop, HR Director Andrea Petersen and Insurance broker Jeff Paxton 
have been working almost non-stop to come up with plan amendments that satisfy our goals. 
Finance Director John Li and I were brought into the conversation at crucial decision making 
points. The broker also called upon other experts and an actuarial as needed. Our goals going 
into this process were: 

 Maintain the current (FY 13) City contribution of $1,500 per employee, per month in 
order to slow the rapid growth in City expenses for health insurance and protect other 
programs from budget cuts. 
 Protect existing jobs and programs 
 Produce health insurance plan options for employees that are still very good plans 
compared to industry standards and comparable cities and organizations. 
 Minimize to the extent possible the financial impacts to employees. 
 Compensate employees for the loss in benefits with a COLA (if possible). 
 Mitigate the potential impacts of the excise tax. 
 Have the amendments approved as part of the normal budget process. 
Andrea and Jeff worked very hard to come up with a plan that was sustainable and at the 
same time minimized to the extent possible the impacts on employees. This was a very 
difficult task given the magnitude of the problem. I believe they reviewed and adjusted at 
least 80 different plans using different assumptions, utilization trends, and interpretations of 
the data. We started out thinking that we would do as much as we could with plan 
amendments and try to minimize premiums (money deducted from paychecks). The two 
plans forwarded to employees ended up containing both plan amendments and increases in 
premiums. Significant increases in premiums was necessary because if we relied totally on 
plan amendments, we would have had deductibles and out of pocket max levels so high that 
the end result was  a plan that essentially covered only catastrophic events. 

We met with employees the weeks of September 23 and 30 to explain the need for changes 
and go over the new, proposed insurance plans. The reaction was what you might expect. 

14



Page 3 of 5 
MEMORANDUM 13-137 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
Employees in general were not very happy. Many employees knew this was coming sooner or 
later and were not surprised. Others appreciated the fact that they have a choice between 
two different plans. Employees who are recent arrivals let us know that these are still good 
plans compared with what is available in most other places.  

But, there is no way to sugar coat this. If implemented, this would be a significant reduction 
in employee benefits and real hit to their wallets. I don’t like reducing employee benefits and 
would increase them if I had the resources to do so. They deserve it. The biggest impact will 
be disproportionately to employees in middle income brackets who have families. From my 
conversations with employees, it seems like the premiums are a bigger concern than 
increases in deductibles and other plan amendments. This is a lot to absorb all at once and 
will really impact family budgets. The Council could reduce premiums or delay their full 
implementation but that would likely require budget cuts elsewhere, new revenues, or 
acceptance of the risk that there might be additional cost overruns and no replenishment of 
the reserve fund.  

Based upon the feedback we received from employees, we reduced the new premiums 20% 
across the board with the exception of the premium for employee only. The plans were 
calculated to cover the Plan costs and replenish the reserve fund. After a lot of additional 
number crunching, I concluded that this reduction in premiums was an acceptable risk. If this 
decision turns out to be a bad move, the risk is that the reserve fund will not be replenished 
and further adjustments may be necessary.     

It is projected that the two plan options that have been rolled out would save the City 
approximately $600,000 in 2014 assuming we did nothing and maintained the status quo. It is 
important to be clear about this though. We have not cut the City budget for health 
insurance. We have simply stopped the escalation in cost. The City contribution to insurance 
is maintained at last year’s level. The employees are making up the additional cost through 
plan amendments and premiums. It is hoped that these plans will result in employees 
thinking more like consumers and making typical consumer choices when it comes to 
purchasing health care services. The result could be less utilization and lower costs. 

Characteristics of the New Plans 

Copies of the proposed health insurance plans that have been provided to the employees are 
attached for your information. A copy of the current plan is also attached for comparison 
purposes. In short, the primary amendments contained in the new plans are: 

 Two plans for employees to choose from; a “Core Plan” and a “Buy-Up Plan.” 
 Unbundling of medical, dental, and vision plans. 
 Higher co-pays, higher deductibles, and higher out of pocket limits. 

15



Page 4 of 5 
MEMORANDUM 13-137 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
 The preferred Provider Organization (PPO) Network will no longer be silent to the 
participant 
 Higher premiums (payroll deductions) 
 A new co-pay for office visits. 
 New fees for spouses who have insurance at their own employer but choose to seek 
coverage by the City Plan. 
 Payments / incentives to employees who “opt-out” and take coverage with their 
spouse’s plan. 
 
The Process Going Forward 

It is my understanding that the Council’s expectation is that the Administration will amend 
the health insurance plan to reduce the City’s costs, hold the City contribution to the same 
level as the FY 2013 Budget, and submit the package to Council as part of the normal budget 
approval process. We have completed our work. I believe that we have produced the best 
product we could given the circumstances and the limited financial resources available to us. 
This has been a very painful process as you might imagine. But I believe that if implemented, 
the new plan will slow the rapid escalation in health care costs and still provide a very good 
benefit to employees. I very much want to provide a COLA this year but chances are that I 
may not be in a position to do so in the draft budget. I would welcome any Council discussion 
about COLAs or providing assistance with the premiums however, you should be aware going 
in that this will likely mean cuts somewhere else or new revenue. 

The Budget schedule calls for the City Manager to deliver the draft budget to the Council by 
October 14. This is the date of a regular Council meeting and the Committee of the Whole will 
be used for an introduction to the draft FY 2014 Budget. As part of the budget discussion, we 
can also review the proposed health insurance plan.  

I would strongly recommend that the Council let us know early on whether it is in favor 
of this plan or not. Council will have two opportunities to do this, at the meeting on the 
14th, when the budget is delivered to you and on October 28th, when the budget is 
formally introduced by ordinance. The reason for requesting that you act quickly on this 
is that in order to implement the new plan beginning January 1, 2014, we must start an 
open enrollment period on November 1. The open enrollment period will last for two 
months until the end of December.      

Future Recommendations 

As we worked our way through this process, it became clear to me that a self- insured plan 
may no longer be the most cost effective approach for the City. The self-insured plan has 
served us very well for many years. For a long time, the City had the best coverage at the 

16



Page 5 of 5 
MEMORANDUM 13-137 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
lowest cost per employee of any City. But things have changed, and changed rapidly. We now 
have some of the highest costs per employee. There are many possible reasons for this. The 
reasons include rising medical costs overall, an aging workforce, a rich plan that results in 
high utilization and costs, and a very small pool over which to spread the risk.  

I would recommend that the City stick with the self-insured plan for at least one more year 
until we have more information about some of the variables and uncertainties that currently 
exist. As things shake out, we might recommend a variety of changes next year that could 
reduce costs further. For example:   

 The exchanges: As you know, the Affordable Health Care Act includes insurance 
exchanges which are currently being established. These exchanges may provide options that 
are not available now. 
 Private Insurance: As we amend the benefit package to get closer to industry 
standards, the bids we receive from the private sector insurance companies become more 
and more attractive. We are rapidly moving toward the time when private insurance will be 
cheaper than the self- insurance plan. 
 Plan Utilization: The proposed plan is projected to change utilization as employees 
make choices about where and how to spend their money. In short, there is a possibility that 
utilization may decrease, thus reducing costs. 
Council will also need to consider how it will respond if costs continue to escalate in future 
years. Will the City increase its contribution? Will the City and employees split the additional 
costs based upon some formula? Employees are very worried about this because they know 
health care costs will only continue to go up. These are discussion items we will need to have 
as we move forward.   

Thanks for your time and consideration.  As always, do not hesitate to contact me if you have 
any questions or comments. 

              

 

17



18



19



20



21



22



 

Memorandum 13-138  
TO:   Mayor and City Council  

THROUGH:  Jo Johnson, Acting City Manager 

FROM:   Robert Painter, Fire Chief 

DATE:   October 7, 2013 

SUBJECT:  Fire Department Budget Requests 

 

Honorable Mayor Wythe & City Council: 

Having reviewed the City Manager’s Budget Memo to Council I would like to provide 
comment regarding the lack of support for the numerous funding requests presented to the 
City Manager regarding urgently needed and necessary maintenance issues regarding the 
existing station and the serious lack of advanced life support coverage during the summer 
months.  

The Homer Volunteer Fire Department was established in 1952 by volunteers dedicated to 
providing fire protection and ambulance service to their neighbors. In 1979, following years of 
fundraising, the existing station on Pioneer Avenue was constructed using mostly volunteer 
time and labor and dedicated in 1980. Following consolidation with the City of Homer in 
1990, the station and other assets were transferred to the city’s care. Except for a major 
seismic construction upgrade and other necessary repairs in 1996/97 there has been little 
done to the station except routine maintenance. The majority of the floor coverings (rubber 
tile and carpeting) is original to the building (installed in 1979) and is simply wearing out. The 
exterior of the building, last stained more than 5 years ago, is also in desperate need of 
repainting and staining to maintain both the structure of the building and to prevent rot and 
decay of this critical infrastructure.  

We realize that replacing the existing fire station with a new Public Safety Building has been 
identified as a capital priority but this process, with all good intentions, will still take at least 
3-5 years before completion, if funding is obtained. In the meantime, it is vital that the 
existing facility be adequately maintained so that it retains its value and functionality. 
Deferring routine maintenance is neither wise, nor fiscally prudent if there is money in the 
building depreciation account.  

As indicated in the City Manager’s memorandum, his budget only included funding to replace 
the exterior fire escape and to replace aging and obsolete gas detectors and calibration 
equipment necessary for the safety of our responders.  

23



For Fiscal Year 2014 the Fire Department also requested funding for two, full-time seasonal 
Emergency Service Specialists (Firefighter/EMT-3) personnel to help provide coverage during 
the summer when a number of our volunteer responders are on leave and our paid staff tend 
to take annual leave (full staffing places 3 personnel [Fire Chief, Departmental Services 
Coordinator and ESS] in the station during the workweek 8 am until 5 pm, but only 1 on duty 
[ESS] 24 hours). As the call volume of the fire department continues to rise almost every year, 
our volunteer membership is harder pressed to be available around the clock, especially 
during the daytime hours when the majority of calls are handled. These two seasonal 
employees would aid in providing a more immediate response to calls both during the day 
and help ensure that advanced life support is available 24/7 as required by our ambulance 
certification level. As the fire department has had a vacant full-time position for some time 
(Assistant Chief), the remaining staff strives to provide continuous EMS coverage, often 
resulting in overtime and on-call pay.  

I can assure the Mayor and City Council it is not my desire or intention to create a fully paid 
fire department. The community has been well served by the mostly volunteer fire 
department for over 60 years, and we strongly desire to retain both the volunteer spirit and 
level of professionalism demonstrated by HVFD from its inception. None-the-less, I do believe 
that we have reached a crossroads in the evolution of the fire service in Homer and must, for 
the benefit of our community, add more paid personnel during the busiest time of year to 
relieve the stress on both paid staff and volunteers alike.  

I request the Council’s support of my request for additional seasonal personnel in the 2014 
budget.  

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS             COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  
491 E. PIONEER AVENUE             5:00 P.M. MONDAY  
HOMER, ALASKA               OCTOBER 28, 2013 
www.cityofhomer‐ak.gov 
               MAYOR BETH WYTHE 
                             COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BARBARA HOWARD 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 

                  CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 

                              CITY MANAGER WALT WREDE 

                                CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 

 
 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER, 5:00 P.M.  
 
Councilmember Van Dyke has requested excusal. 
 
2. AGENDA APPROVAL (Only those matters on the noticed agenda may be considered, 
 pursuant to City Council’s Operating Manual, pg. 5) 
 
3. Ken Castner, Petition for Charter Commission Election 
 
4. 2014 BUDGET 
  
5. CONSENT AGENDA         
 
6. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA       
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT NO LATER THAN 5:50 P.M.  
 Next Regular Meeting is Monday, November 25, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., Worksession at 4:00 

p.m., and Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the 
City Hall Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 

 
 
 
 

31



32



 
 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA APPROVAL

33



34



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS             REGULAR MEETING  
491 E. PIONEER AVENUE             6:00 P.M. MONDAY  
HOMER, ALASKA               OCTOBER 28, 2013 
www.cityofhomer‐ak.gov 
               MAYOR BETH WYTHE 
                             COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BARBARA HOWARD 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 

                  COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 

                  CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 

                              CITY MANAGER WALT WREDE 

                                CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Worksession 4:00 p.m. and Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m. in Homer City Hall Cowles 
Council Chambers.    
  
1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
Councilmember Van Dyke has requested excusal. 

 
Department Heads may be called upon from time to time to participate via teleconference. 
 
2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
(Addition of items to or removing items from the agenda will be by unanimous consent of the 
Council. HCC 1.24.040.) 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS UPON MATTERS ALREADY ON THE AGENDA 
 
4. RECONSIDERATION 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(Items listed below will be enacted by one motion. If separate discussion is desired on an 
item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Meeting 
Agenda at the request of a Councilmember.) 
 
A. Homer City Council unapproved Regular meeting minutes of September 23 and 

October 14, 2013. City Clerk. Recommend adoption.  Pages 47/61   
   

 

35



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

B. Memorandum 13-148, from Mayor, Re: Appointment of Corbin Arno to the Economic 
Development Advisory Commission, Reappointment of Councilmember Bryan Zak to 
the Economic Development Advisory Commission as Consulting Member, and 
Reappointment of Matt North to the Permanent Fund Committee. 

          Page 77 
C. Memorandum 13-151, from Deputy City Clerk, Re: Liquor License Renewal for Salty 

Dawg Saloon and Café Cups.      Page 83 
 
D. Ordinance 13-42, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 
 the Definition of “Discontinued” in Homer City Code 21.61.015, Definitions, to Extend 
 the Time Required to Discontinue a Nonconforming Use from 12  Months to 36 Months. 
 Zak.  Recommended dates: Introduction October 28, 2013, Refer to Planning 
 Commission, Public Hearing and Second Reading November 25.  Page 91 
 
E. Ordinance 13-43, An Ordinance of the Homer City Council Authorizing the 
 Expenditure of Homer Accelerated Water and Sewer Program (HAWSP) Funds for 
 Paradise Place Sewer Main Extension and Approving the Creation of a Deferred 
 Assessment on Benefitted Properties. City Manager/Public Works Director. 
 Recommended dates: Introduction October 28, 2013, Public Hearing and Second 
 Reading November 25, 2013.      Page 95 
 
 Memorandum 13-150 from Public Works Inspector as backup. Page 101 
 
F. Ordinance 13-44, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Appropriating 

Funds for the Calendar Year 2014 for the General Fund, the Water-Sewer Fund, the 
Port/Harbor Fund, Debt Funds, and Capital Reserve Funds (Conditional Expenditures).  
City Manager. Recommended dates: Introduction October 28, 2013, Public Hearings 

 November 25 and December 9, 2013, and Second Reading December 9, 2013.  
         Page 105 

G. Resolution 13-107, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Maintaining the 
City of Homer Fee Schedule at Current Rates. City Clerk. Recommended to follow 
Budget Ordinance 13-44 schedule.      Page 109 
 

H. Resolution 13-108, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Maintaining the 
Port and Harbor Terminal Tariff No. 600 at the Current Rates. City Clerk. 
Recommended to follow Budget Ordinance 13-44 schedule. Page 111 

 
I. Resolution 13-109, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid for the 
 Port and Harbor Surplus Dock Fenders to the Firm of Alaska Marine Excavation LLC of 
 Anchor Point, Alaska, in the Amount of $25,500 and Authorizing the City Manager to 
 Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Clerk. Recommend adoption. 
          Page 113 
 
 Memorandum 13-152 from Port and Harbor Director as backup. Page 115 

36



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

 
6. VISITORS 
 
A. Jim Lavrakas, Homer Chamber of Commerce, 10 minutes. Page 121  
 
B. Ken Castner, Petition for Charter Commission Election, 5 minutes. 
 
7. ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS/BOROUGH REPORT/COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
A. Mayor’s Proclamation - Extra Mile Day -  November 1, 2013 Page 129 
 
B. Borough Report 
 
C. Commissions/Board Reports: 
 

1. Library Advisory Board 
 

2. Homer Advisory Planning Commission 
 

3. Economic Development Advisory Commission 
 
4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 
 

 5. Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING(S) 
 
A. Ordinance 13-39, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 
 Appropriating a Land and Water Conservation Fund Grant from the State of Alaska 
 Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation in the Amount of $75,000 and Appropriating 
 the Required Local Match in the Amount of $75,000 for Improvements to Karen 
 Hornaday Park and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 
 Documents.  City Manager. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public Hearing and Second 
 Reading October 28, 2013.      Page 135   
  
 
B. Ordinance 13-40, An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Amending HCC 7.04.010, 

State Statutes Adopted by Reference, HCC 7.04.020, Copies of State Traffic Code on 
File, HCC 7.04.030, Violation—Penalty, HCC 7.08.010, Compliance with State Law, HCC 
7.08.045, Handicapped Parking, HCC 7.08.058, Removal of Impoundment Notice, and 
HCC 10.04.110, Violation—Penalty; and Repealing HCC 7.04.023, State Schedule of 
Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture—Adopted, HCC 7.04.025, State Schedule of 

37



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture--Conflict with General Penalty, HCC 
7.06.100, Penalty and Fine Schedule, HCC 7.08.060, Violation—Penalty, HCC 7.20.010, 
Compliance with State Law, HCC 7.20.080, Violation—Penalty, HCC Chapter 24, Traffic 
Violation Mandatory Sentences, and HCC 7.28.060, Violation; Penalty; to Establish a 
Consolidated Traffic Fine Schedule. City Clerk. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public 
Hearing and Second Reading October 28, 2013.   Page 141   

 
C. Ordinance 13-41, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Appropriating a 

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Learning Landscape Grant with 50% In-Kind Matching 
Requirement, Up to $25,000, for the Purpose of Completing Landscaping 
Improvements at Karen Hornaday Park Playground. City Manager/Public Works 
Director. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public Hearing and Second Reading October 
28, 2013.         Page 151   

 
 Memorandum 13-142 from Public Works Director as backup.  Page 155   
 
9. ORDINANCE(S) 
 
10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
A. City Manager’s Report       
 
11. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
12. COMMITTEE REPORT 
  
A. Public Arts Committee   
 
B.  Transportation Advisory Committee 
  
C. Permanent Fund Committee 
 
D. Lease Committee 
 
E. Port and Harbor Improvement Committee 
 
F. Employee Committee Report 
 
G. Port and Harbor Building Task Force 
 
13. PENDING BUSINESS 
 

38



______________________________________________________________________________ 
City	of	Homer,	Alaska	 	 October	28,	2013	
 
 
 

14. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Memorandum 13-149, from City Clerk, Re: Selection/Appointment of Mayor Pro 

Tempore for 2013/2014.      Page 171 
 
15. RESOLUTIONS 
 
16. COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
17. COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
18. COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 
19.  COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 
20.  COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 
21.  COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
22. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Next Regular Meeting is Monday, November 25, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., Worksession at 4:00 

p.m., and Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the 
City Hall Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 

 
 
 
 

39



40



 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
UPON MATTERS  

ALREADY ON THE AGENDA

41



42



 
 
 
 
 
 

RECONSIDERATION

43



44



 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA

45



46



HOMER CITY COUNCIL  UNAPPROVED 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

 1 101513 mj 
 

47



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 2 101513 mj 
 

48



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 3 101513 mj 
 

49



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 4 101513 mj 
 

50



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 5 101513 mj 
 

51



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 6 101513 mj 
 

52



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 7 101513 mj 
 

53



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 8 101513 mj 
 

54



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 9 101513 mj 
 

55



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 10 101513 mj 
 

56



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 11 101513 mj 
 

57



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 12 101513 mj 
 

58



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 13 101513 mj 
 

59



HOMER CITY COUNCIL   
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 

 14 101513 mj 
 

60



HOMER CITY COUNCIL  UNAPPROVED 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 
 

  1 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Session 13-20 a Regular Meeting of the Homer City Council was called to order on October 14, 
2013 at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Mary E. Wythe at the Homer City Hall Cowles Council Chambers 
located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska, and opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  BURGESS, DOLMA, HOWARD, LEWIS, ROBERTS, ZAK 
 
 STAFF: ACTING CITY MANAGER/CLERK JOHNSON 
  CITY ATTORNEY KLINKNER 
  COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
    COORDINATOR   KOESTER 
  FINANCE DIRECTOR LI 
  LIBRARY DIRECTOR DIXON 
  POLICE CHIEF ROBL 
  PORT AND HARBOR DIRECTOR HAWKINS 
  PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT MANAGER NELSEN 
 
Council met as a Committee of the Whole from 5:00 p.m. to 5:51 p.m. to discuss 2014 Budget. 
 
Department Heads may be called upon from time to time to participate via teleconference. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
(Addition of items to or removing items from the agenda will be by unanimous consent of the 
Council. HCC 1.24.040.) 
 
The agenda was amended to include the oath of office for newly elected officials, Incumbent 
Bryan Zak and New Councilmember Gus Van Dyke, and seating arrangement for Council 
under Announcements/Presentations.  
 
The following changes were made: 
CONSENT AGENDA - Resolution 13-097, A Resolution of the City Council Certifying the 
Results of the City of Homer Regular Election Held October 1, 2013 to Decide Ballot 
Referendum #1 “Shall Homer City Code Chapter 5.42 Prohibiting Sellers from Providing 
Customers with Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags be Repealed: and to Elect Two Council 
Members. City Clerk/Canvass Board. Memorandum 13-146 from Deputy City Clerk as backup. 
Resolution 13-102, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Restoring the Irrevocable 

61



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  2 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Grandfather Rights Back to the Bay View Inn. Zak. Memorandum 13-147 from City Attorney as 
backup. Written public comments. ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS/BOROUGH 
REPORT/COMMISSION REPORTS - Oath of Office to Newly Elected Officials Gus Van Dyke 
and Bryan Zak; PUBLIC HEARING(S) - 2014 Budget; Written public comments. PENDING 
BUSINESS - Resolution 13-106(S), A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid 
for the Operation and Management of the Homer Animal Shelter to Coastal Animal Care of 
Homer, Alaska, in the Amount of $129,988.80 for a Three-Year Contract, with a Two-Year 
Extension Option, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. 
City Clerk/Police Chief. Memorandum 13-145 from Police Chief as backup.  
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the approval of the agenda as amended. 
 
LEWIS/ROBERTS - SO MOVED. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS UPON MATTERS ALREADY ON THE AGENDA 
 
Lindianne Sarno, city resident and member of Homer Area Trails, supports the Kachemak 
Drive non-motorized path. No reconsideration is needed on Resolution 13-040. 
 
Beth Cumming, city resident, asked Council to vote down reconsideration for Resolution 13-
040. 
 
RECONSIDERATION 
 
A. Resolution 13-040, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Directing the City 
 Administration to Terminate All Survey, Design, and Cost Estimating Work on 
 the Kachemak Drive Pathway. Mayor.   
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion to reconsider Resolution 13-040.  
 
ROBERTS/HOWARD – SO MOVED. 
 

62



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  3 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Councilmember Roberts brought the resolution back for reconsideration to allow an 
opportunity to vote the way she intended. 
 
VOTE: YES. ROBERTS, HOWARD  
VOTE: NO. DOLMA, ZAK, BURGESS, LEWIS 
 
Motion failed.     
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(Items listed below will be enacted by one motion. If separate discussion is desired on an 
item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Meeting 
Agenda at the request of a Councilmember.) 
 
A. Memorandum 13-139, from Mayor, Re: Appointment of Roger MacCampbell to the 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission, Tom Stroozas to the Planning 
Commission, and Daniel Donich to the Port and Harbor Advisory Commission, and the 
Reappointment of Dave Brann to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission. 

            
B. Ordinance 13-39, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 

Appropriating a Land and Water Conservation Fund Grant from the State of Alaska 
Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation in the Amount of $75,000 and Appropriating 
the Required Local Match in the Amount of $75,000 for Improvements to Karen 
Hornaday Park and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 
Documents.  City Manager. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public Hearing and Second 
Reading October 28, 2013.        

 
C. Ordinance 13-40, An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Amending HCC 7.04.010, 

State Statutes Adopted by Reference, HCC 7.04.020, Copies of State Traffic Code on 
File, HCC 7.04.030, Violation—Penalty, HCC 7.08.010, Compliance with State Law, HCC 
7.08.045, Handicapped Parking, HCC 7.08.058, Removal of Impoundment Notice, and 
HCC 10.04.110, Violation—Penalty; and Repealing HCC 7.04.023, State Schedule of 
Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture—Adopted, HCC 7.04.025, State Schedule of 
Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture--Conflict with General Penalty, HCC 
7.06.100, Penalty and Fine Schedule, HCC 7.08.060, Violation—Penalty, HCC 7.20.010, 
Compliance with State Law, HCC 7.20.080, Violation—Penalty, HCC Chapter 24, Traffic 
Violation Mandatory Sentences, and HCC 7.28.060, Violation; Penalty; to Establish a 

63



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  4 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Consolidated Traffic Fine Schedule. City Clerk. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public 
Hearing and Second Reading October 28,  2013.     

 
D. Ordinance 13-41, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Appropriating a 

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Learning Landscape Grant with 50% In-Kind Matching 
Requirement, Up to $25,000, for the Purpose of Completing Landscaping 
Improvements at Karen Hornaday Park Playground. City Manager/Public Works 
Director. Introduction October 14, 2013, Public Hearing and Second Reading October 
28, 2013.           

 
 Memorandum 13-142 from Public Works Director as backup.    
 
E. Resolution 13-097, A Resolution of the City Council Certifying the Results of the City 
 of Homer Regular Election Held October 1, 2013 to Decide Ballot Referendum #1 “Shall 
 Homer City Code Chapter 5.42 Prohibiting Sellers from Providing Customers with 
 Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags be Repealed: and to Elect Two Council Members. 
 City Clerk/Canvass Board. Recommend adoption.     
 
 Memorandum 13-146 from Deputy City Clerk as backup.   
 
F. Resolution 13-098, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Expressing 
 Support for the Pratt Museum’s Grant Request in the Amount of $2.55 Million for Its 
 New Facility. Mayor/Roberts/Burgess. Recommend adoption.    
 
G. Resolution 13-099, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Encouraging Governor 
 Parnell and the Alaska State Legislature to Invest in Transportation Infrasturcture. 
 Burgess. Recommend adoption.       
 
H. Resolution 13-100, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Requesting the 

Governor to Include in His FY 2015 Capital Budget a Deposit of $100 Million into the 
Vessel Replacement Fund for the Purpose of Constructing a New Ocean-Going Vessel 
to Replace the M/V Tustumena.  Mayor/City Council.  Recommend adoption. 

            
I. Resolution 13-101, A Resolution of the City Council Of Homer, Alaska, Supporting the 

Center for Alaskan Coastal Studies Recreational Trail Program Grant Application 
Administered by the Alaska Department of Natural Resources, Division of Parks and 
Outdoor Recreation. Zak. Recommend adoption.     

  
J. Resolution 13-102, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Restoring the Irrevocable 
 Grandfather Rights Back to the Bay View Inn. Zak. Recommend adoption. 

64



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  5 10/17/13 - jj 
 

 Memorandum 13-147 from City Attorney as backup. 
 
MOVED TO RESOLUTIONS.   
  
K. Resolution 13-103, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Approving a 

Sublease and Operating Agreement Between the Kenai Peninsula Borough and South 
Peninsula Hospital Inc. Dated August 28, 2013.City Manager. Recommend adoption. 

            
L. Resolution 13-104, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Contract for 
 the Homer Natural Gas Conversion Project Phase I to the Firm of Intelligent Design, 
 LLC of Anchorage, Alaska, in the Amount of $56,776.00 and Authorizing the City 
 Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Clerk/Public Works Director. 
 Recommend adoption.        
 
  Memorandum 13-143 from Project Manager as backup.     
 
M. Resolution 13-105, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid for the 
 Snow Removal and Sanding Services 2013/14, 2014/15, and 2015/16 to the Firm of 
 Gregoire Construction of Homer, Alaska, in the Amount of $450.00 per Snow 
 Plow/Trip; $450.00 per Sanding/Trip; Total/Trip $900.00 and Authorizing the City 
 Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Clerk/Public Works Director. 
 Recommend adoption.        
 
 Memorandum 13-144 from Public Works Director as backup.  
 
MOVED TO RESOLUTIONS.   
 
N. Memorandum 13-140, from City Clerk, Re: Travel Authorization for Mayor Wythe and 
 Councilmember Zak to Attend the Alaska Municipal League 63rd Annual Local 
 Government Conference in Anchorage, Alaska, November 18 - 22, 2013.   
 
O. Memorandum 13-141, From City Clerk Re: Vacate the West Half of the 80-foot Wide 

Public Use Easement that Extends Through the East Portion of Lot 38, Bunnell’s 
Subdivision. Said Plat Bunnell’s Subdivision is Recorded in the Seldovia Recording 
District. Said Easement was Created in 1970 and Recorded in Book 60 Page 230-234 
Homer Recording District (HRD), and is Applied to the Subject Property by the 
Applicant Note Page 230 of Book 60 HRD Describing Property by Parcel No. 175-142-
13, and as Lot 28 of Bunnell’s Subdivision. Said Easement is Further Shown as 

65



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  6 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Easement 21 Within Said Book 60 Page 234 HRD. All Property Lies Within Section 19, 
Township 6, Range 13 West, Seward Meridian, Alaska, Within the City of Homer and 
the Kenai Peninsula Borough, KPB File 2013-132; Location: City of Homer. 

            
Item J – Resolution 13-102 and Item M – Resolution 13-105 were moved to Resolutions. 
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the approval of the recommendations of the consent 
agenda as read. 
 
ZAK/LEWIS – SO MOVED. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
VISITORS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS/BOROUGH REPORT/COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
A. Recognition of Councilmember Dolma 
 
Mayor Wythe recognized Councilmember Dolma for his service on the Council and presented 
him a plaque. 
 
B. Oath of Office Administered to the Newly Elected Officials Gus Van Dyke and Bryan 

Zak/Seating Arrangement  
 
City Clerk Johnson administered the Oath of Office to Gus Van Dyke and Bryan Zak.  

    
Council retained their current seating arrangement with newly elected member Gus Van Dyke 
to replace James Dolma’s seat. 
 
C. Borough Report 
 

66



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  7 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Bill Smith, Kenai Peninsula Borough Assemblyman, reported Mayor Navarre had a good 
conversation with Governor Parnell on health care needs and support for the Pratt Museum. 
The Assembly presented their short capital project list that includes a request for money for 
roads. They are asking for money to contain or eradicate the plant infestation Elodia. If it 
spreads in the Bridge Creek reservoir it would be difficult to deal with. The Assembly is 
looking for support for shoring up the Tall Tree Bridge and supporting Homer Electric’s 
request for a generator for Seldovia. They need backup for the south side of the bay when the 
lines go down in storms. There is a need to recap the landfill; there is $250,000 for design 
work and $1.9M to manage the landfill after it is closed. It is the first of three phases to close 
the landfill that will be ongoing for the next 15 years. 
 
D. Commissions/Board Reports: 
 

1. Library Advisory Board       
 

a. 2013 Strategic Plan 
 
David Groesbeck, LAB Chair, referenced the draft strategic plan that is a work in progress and 
represents the thinking of members of the LAB.  
 

2. Homer Advisory Planning Commission 
 
3. Economic Development Advisory Commission 

 
Lindianne Sarno, Chair of the EDC, reported Councilmember Zak, Katie Koester, and she 
toured the city water intake plant. Todd Cook provided an excellent tour that she highly 
recommends. From an economic development point of view they are looking at marketing 
the hundreds of thousands of gallons of water we don’t use. The EDC plans to tour the 
sewage treatment plant and she wonders what marketable product will be discovered there. 
 
 4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 
 
Matt Steffey, Parks and Recreation Advisory Commissioner, congratulated Councilmembers 
Zak and Van Dyke. He welcomed Roger MacCampbell to the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Commission and Dave Brann for renewing his seat. Recently there was a clean up of the 
Poopdeck Trail to clear alder from the trail. The recreate rec group is gaining momentum. 
Kate Crowley has scheduled a visit to the Sterling Community Recreation Center on October 

67



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  8 10/17/13 - jj 
 

28th from 10:30 a.m. to noon. Members of the commission will be attending and Council is 
invited. Letters of support for the parks and recreation needs assessment are contained in 
the council packet. It is a one-time budget expenditure for a needs assessment that has not 
been conducted since the 80’s. He requested Council keep the item on the table as they move 
through the budget process. The cost of the needs assessment is $50,000. 

 
 5. Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 

 
PUBLIC HEARING(S) 
 
A. 2014 BUDGET 
 
 Budget Message for Fiscal Year 2014 from City Manager   
 Memorandum 13-137 from City Manager, Re: Amendments to Employee Health 
 Insurance Plan         
 Memorandum 13-138 from Fire Chief, Re: Fire Department Budget Requests 
            
Mayor Wythe opened the public hearing. In the absence of public testimony, Mayor Wythe 
closed the public hearing.  
 
ORDINANCE(S) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
A. City Manager’s Report 
 
B. Bid Report            
 
CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
 1. City Attorney Report – September 2013     
 
City Attorney Klinkner congratulated the newly elected council members. He reported the 
litigation with Tony Neal over the terms of his donation of Ben Walters Memorial Park has 
been resolved in the City’s favor. A final judgment has been entered that voids the covenants 
document that Mr. Neal relied on for his claim against the city. The City’s record title is clear 
of the covenants document. The deed to the park is still in effect and contains conditions for 

68



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  9 10/17/13 - jj 
 

the property’s use as a park. It remains in effect and is binding on the city. We secured Mr. 
Neal’s agreement not to appeal the decision and in return agreed to waive any claim for 
attorney fees. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORT 
  
A. Public Arts Committee   
 
B.  Transportation Advisory Committee 
  
C. Permanent Fund Committee 
 
D. Lease Committee 
 
E. Port and Harbor Improvement Committee 
 
F. Employee Committee Report 
 
G. Port and Harbor Building Task Force 
 
PENDING BUSINESS 
 
A. (If Reconsideration Passes) Resolution 13-040, A Resolution of the Homer City 

Council Directing the City Administration to Terminate All Survey, Design, and Cost 
Estimating Work on the  Kachemak Drive Pathway. Mayor.    

 
Memorandums 13-059 and 13-135 from Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission as 
backup.          
 
Reconsideration failed. No action taken. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Resolution 13-106, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid for the 
 Operation and Management of the Homer Animal Shelter to the Lowest Responsible 

69



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  10 10/17/13 - jj 
 

 Bidder in the Amount of the Low Bid and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
 Appropriate Documents. City Clerk/Police Chief.     
 
 Resolution 13-106(S), A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid for 
 the Operation and Management of the Homer Animal Shelter to Coastal Animal Care 
 of Homer, Alaska, in the Amount of $129,988.80 for a Three-Year Contract, with a Two-
 Year Extension Option, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 
 Documents. City Clerk/Police Chief.   
     
 Memorandum 13-145 from Police Chief as backup.  
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Resolution 13-106 by reading of title 
only. 
 
LEWIS/ZAK – SO MOVED. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion to substitute Resolution 13-106(S) for Resolution 13-106. 
 
BURGESS/ZAK – SO MOVED.  
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
VOTE: (main motion as amended) YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 

70



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  11 10/17/13 - jj 
 

B. Resolution 13-102, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Restoring the Irrevocable 
 Grandfather Rights Back to the Bay View Inn. Zak.  
             
 Memorandum 13-147 from City Attorney as backup. 
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Resolution 13-102 by reading of title 
only.      
 
ZAK/LEWIS – SO MOVED. 
 
Councilmember Zak brought the resolution forward for a chance to discuss it. Memorandum 
13-147 from the city attorney talks about the reasons why we cannot just grandfather 
businesses in. He talked to Planning about procedures anyone with a business could go 
through to become conforming. Just one day of operating the business within the twelve 
month period makes it conforming. If that is not possible there is the option of a conditional 
use permit through the Planning Commission or addressing the definition of non-conforming 
or discontinuance. Both of those options might be another way for businesses to continue 
operations.  
 
Councilmember Burgess agrees with Councilmember Zak’s intention to assist a business. We 
do run a lot of legal risks by playing favorites or micromanaging. The best approach is to find 
a more universal solution, still remaining business friendly. 
 
Councilmember Howard commented a property owner has the right to have his property at 
the highest and best use. The value of the subject property has been reduced by taking it 
back to residential. A solution must be applicable city-wide. In most courts property rights 
are precious and we need to be careful. She encouraged the applicants to work through the 
proper channels to resolve things for the good of the whole. 
 
Councilmember Lewis asked the city attorney if it is possible to go back to the ordinance that 
all businesses in the annexed portion of the city could be grandfathered in permanently. 
Because of annexation businesses should not be punished.  
 
City Attorney Klinkner will review the annexation/grandfather rights for properties. 
 
Councilmember Dolma thinks the conversation is not properly directed. There are legal 
mechanisms by legal remedy that could have been taken by the landowner to avoid the 
situation. It is wrong to address this for a specific landowner.  
 
Mayor Wythe advised Council they can provide direction to Planning and Zoning. It can be a 
broad direction that they explore alternatives with no impact on businesses. The attorney 
could look to see if there is a provision related to annexation.  

71



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  12 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Councilmember Dolma reiterated the situation wasn’t caused by the way the grandfathered 
business was set up. The problem was that the owner of the property did not do things that 
were possible; it was poor planning. It is not something the city did wrong and this is not the 
correct way to fix it. 
 
Councilmember Burgess requested the Planning Commission take a look at how to transition 
uses that are nonconforming into conforming uses. He runs into th situation with neighbors 
and other small businesses. He requested the Planning Commission to come back with 
something more user friendly. 
 
Mayor Wythe confirmed Council’s recommendation to have Planning review nonconforming 
uses.  
 
VOTE: NO. LEWIS, ROBERTS, DOLMA, ZAK, HOWARD, BURGESS  
 
Motion failed. 
 
C. Resolution 13-105, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Bid for the 
 Snow Removal and Sanding Services 2013/14, 2014/15, and 2015/16 to the Firm of 
 Gregoire Construction of Homer, Alaska, in the Amount of $450.00 per Snow 
 Plow/Trip; $450.00 per Sanding/Trip; Total/Trip $900.00 and Authorizing the City 
 Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Clerk/Public Works Director. 
 Recommend adoption.        
 
 Memorandum 13-144 from Public Works Director as backup.    
 
Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Resolution 13-105 by reading of title 
only. 
 
DOLMA/LEWIS - SO MOVED. 
 
Councilmember Dolma questioned the high rates and asked if it was possible for the city 
employees to do the plowing/sanding or put it out for bid again. 
 
Councilmember Burgess commented the bid seemed high, but there are five buildings to 
plow. That computes to $90 per building for plowing/sanding. Gregoire Construction is 
qualified to do the work.  
 

72



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  13 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Council discussed the option of postponing action to October 28th when the City Manager and 
Public Works Director were back. After hearing that Public Works was busy plowing/sanding 
other critical areas of town in the early mornings, Council decided to award the contract 
tonight. 
 
VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
 
There were no comments of the audience. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
City Attorney Klinkner had no comment.  
 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 
 
City Clerk Johnson thanked everyone that participated in this year’s election. It was a 
successful election with a few new learning experiences. We appreciate our election workers 
and the other clerks in the office.  
 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Acting City Manager Johnson had no comment. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 
 
Mayor Wythe congratulated Bryan and Gus and thanked James for his commitment this last 
year. She thanked Jo for taking on the role of the city manager while Walt is on vacation and 
for being the city clerk. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Dolma commented it has been a fun year. He is looking forward to following 
the exploits of the City Council next year. 

73



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  14 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Councilmember Lewis thanked James. He said it has been fun serving with him. He is sure 
James will enjoy sitting home on Monday nights now.  He congratulated both Bryan and Gus 
and Justin on his successful return of the bags. He is disappointed but not surprised. 
 
Councilmember Burgess thanked everyone for a great meeting and thanked everyone for 
voting in the election. He will be sad to see James go. Bryan and Gus, let’s work hard. For 
upcoming budget priorities it important that we pay attention to and seriously consider the 
upcoming 2% staff COLA. We should look to the COLA and increasing base pay as a way to 
justify and reduce health care costs. Given the budget presentation, we need to look at 
optimizing our operating revenues. There is money we could be making on airport operations 
and across the board. A community recreation needs assessment is needed. There are a lot of 
other things the community can do to keep the ball rolling and bring in other revenue 
streams. We should take the Chamber’s request for funding to shore up the visitors center 
and marketing more seriously. We rely on the Chamber of Commerce to market the 
community.   
 
Councilmember Zak thanked James for his service to the community. As James said, there is 
opportunity for past council members to sign up for a commission. He thanked all the people 
that ran the election.  He met a lot of great people and learned a lot from them in the process. 
It was a learning process after the election to see the recount and the professionalism with 
the voting. The way everything was done is a critical process that was done correctly by 
professionals. It was a 3.5 to 4 hour process and he felt reassured at the importance of voting. 
He appreciates the time voters took to come to vote; it was down to ten votes. He thanked 
the LAB for presenting their strategic plan, and acknowledged the letters in the packet from 
the Homer Hockey Association and the rec group. Lastly, he thanked the folks that asked him 
to present Resolution 13-102 to try to find a solution to the nonconforming use. There are 
three or four possible solutions that we have to keep addressing. 
 
Councilmember Roberts thanked James for his service. She enjoyed working with him. He is 
an insightful and thoughtful person. She looks forward to continuing to work with Bryan and 
welcomed Gus. 
 
Councilmember Howard thanked James for serving on the City Council and Planning 
Commission. She enjoyed working with him. She congratulated and welcomed Gus. She 
thanked the unsuccessful candidates for getting in the arena. She thanked the Clerks for 
running a smooth election and conducting the recount. It was a lot of stress, but they 
complied with the law very well.  

74



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 14, 2013 
 

  15 10/17/13 - jj 
 

Mayor Wythe announced the Rotary Health Fair is Saturday, November 2. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Wythe adjourned the 
meeting at 7:02 p.m. The next Regular Meeting is Monday, October 28, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. and 
Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the City Hall Cowles 
Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 
 
____________________________ 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Approved: ___________________ 

75



76



 
 
 

Memorandum 13-148 
 
 
TO:   HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:   MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 
 
DATE:   OCTOBER 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  APPOINTMENT OF CORBIN ARNO TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY 
  COMMISSION, REAPPOINTMENT OF COUNCILMEMBER BRYAN ZAK TO THE  
  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION AS CONSULTING MEMBER,  
  AND REAPPOINTMENT OF MATT NORTH TO THE PERMANENT FUND   
  COMMITTEE. 
 
Corbin Arno is appointed to the Economic Development Advisory Commission to replace 
outgoing member Nicholas Schmitt. His term will expire April 1, 2016. 
 
Councilmember Bryan Zak is reappointed to the Economic Development Advisory 
Commission as consulting member. His appointment will expire with office.  
 
Matt North is reappointed to the Permanent Fund Committee. His appointment will expire 
October 31, 2015. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Confirm the appointment of Corbin Arno to the Economic Development Advisory 
Commission, the reappointment of Bryan Zak to the Economic Development Advisory 
Commission as consulting member, and the reappointment of Matt North to the Permanent 
Fund Committee.  
 
 
Fiscal Note: N/A 
 
  

77



78



79



80



81



82



 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-42 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the Definition of 
“Discontinued” in Homer City Code 21.61.015, Definitions, to Extend the Time Required to 
Discontinue a Nonconforming Use from 12  Months to 36 Months.  
 
Sponsor: Zak 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Introduction 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

91



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

92



[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 
 

 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

Zak  3 
 ORDINANCE 13-42 4 
 5 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
AMENDING THE DEFINITION OF “DISCONTINUED” IN HOMER 7 
CITY CODE 21.61.015, DEFINITIONS, TO EXTEND THE TIME 8 
REQUIRED TO DISCONTINUE A NONCONFORMING USE FROM 12 9 
MONTHS TO 36 MONTHS. 10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, The City’s zoning code permits the continuation of a lawful nonconforming 12 
use subject to limitations; and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS, One such limitation is that the right to maintain a nonconforming use 15 
terminates when the use ceases and has not substantially resumed for a period of 12 16 
consecutive months; and  17 
 18 
 WHEREAS, Due to factors outside the control of the former or successor operator of a 19 
nonconforming use, the time required for a successor operator to resume the operation of 20 
the use may exceed 12 months, resulting in an unfair forfeiture of the right to maintain the 21 
use; and  22 
 23 
 WHEREAS, A 36-month limit on the time a nonconforming use may cease will provide 24 
a more reasonable time for a successor operator to accomplish the steps necessary to 25 
resume operation of the use. 26 
 27 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 28 
 29 
 Section 1. The definition of “Discontinued” in HCC 21.61.015, Definitions, is hereby 30 
amended to read as follows: 31 
 32 

"Discontinued" means that a nonconforming use has ceased, and has not 33 
substantially resumed, for a period of 36 12 consecutive months, regardless of intent. 34 
 35 

Section 2. This Ordinance is of a permanent and general character and shall be 36 
included in the City Code. 37 
 38 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 39 
______________ 2013.  40 
 41 

93



Page 2 
ORDINANCE 13-42 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 
 

       CITY OF HOMER 42 
 43 
 44 
       _____________________ 45 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  46 
 47 
ATTEST:  48 
 49 
 50 
___________________________ 51 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  52 
 53 
 54 
 55 
YES:  56 
NO:  57 
ABSTAIN:  58 
ABSENT:  59 
 60 
 61 
 62 
First Reading: 63 
Public Hearing: 64 
Second Reading: 65 
Effective Date:   66 
 67 
 68 
 69 
Reviewed and approved as to form. 70 
 71 
    72 
Walt Wrede, City Manager  Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 73 
 74 
Date:    Date:   75 
 76 
 77 
 78 
Fiscal Note: N/A 79 

94



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-43 
 

An Ordinance of the Homer City Council Authorizing the  Expenditure of Homer Accelerated 
Water and Sewer Program (HAWSP) Funds for Paradise Place Sewer Main Extension and 
Approving the Creation of a Deferred Assessment on Benefitted Properties.  
 
Sponsor: City Manager/Public Works Director 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Introduction 
 
 a. Memorandum 13-150 from Public Works Inspector as backup 
 b. Map of proposed sewer extension 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

95



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



 

 

 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager/ 3 
Public Works Director  4 

 ORDINANCE 13-43 5 
 6 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING 7 
THE EXPENDITURE OF HOMER ACCELERATED WATER AND 8 
SEWER PROGRAM (HAWSP) FUNDS FOR PARADISE PLACE SEWER 9 
MAIN EXTENSION AND APPROVING THE CREATION OF A 10 
DEFERRED ASSESSMENT ON BENEFITTED PROPERTIES.  11 
  12 

 WHEREAS, The owner of Lot 3, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision needs to replace 13 
the lot’s on-site sewer system and desires to connect to the City sewer system; and 14 
 15 
 WHEREAS, To receive City sewer service, the owner of Lot 3, Block 2, Paradise South 16 
Subdivision must extend a sewer main 700 feet west along Paradise Place from Spencer Drive 17 
to the western edge of Lot 3, Block 2; and 18 
 19 
 WHEREAS, This sewer main extension also would front and benefit Lots 1 and 4, Block 20 
1, and Lots 1 and 2, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision, and the cost of design and 21 
construction of the main extension should be allocated equally among the five benefitted 22 
properties; and 23 
 24 

WHEREAS, Lot 1, Block 1, and Lot 1, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision already 25 
receive city sewer service from an existing main, and both were considered adjacent to that 26 
main and paid main extension costs at the time of their connection; and  27 
 28 
 WHEREAS, The owners of the other benefitted properties have declined to participate 29 
in a special assessment district to finance the main extension; and 30 
 31 

WHEREAS, In the past the City has reimbursed a property owner who extends a sewer 32 
main for the costs of the extension that are allocated to other benefitted properties, and 33 
made those other benefitted properties subject to deferred assessments for their allocated 34 
portion of the main extension costs; and 35 
 36 

WHEREAS, The Public Works Department and the City Attorney recommend that the 37 
City pay the part of the main extension cost that would be allocated to Lot 1, Block 1, and Lot 38 
1, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision because each lot already paid main extension costs 39 
when it connected to the City sewer system; and  40 
 41 

97



Page 2 of 4 
ORDINANCE 13-43 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

 

WHEREAS, Lot 4, Block 1, and Lot 2, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision should be 42 
subject to deferred assessments for their portion of the main extension cost that are due and 43 
payable to the City only if and when the owner of the lot applies for a connection permit to 44 
receive City sewer service. 45 
 46 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 47 
  48 
 Section 1.  The owner of Lot 3, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision initially shall pay 49 
the cost of design and construction of a 700 foot sewer main extension west along Paradise 50 
Place from Spencer Drive to the western edge of Lot 3, Block 2.  The estimated cost of the 51 
sewer main extension is $37,000.  52 
 53 
 Section 2.  The cost of the sewer main extension described in Section 1 shall be 54 
allocated equally among Lots 1 and 4, Block 1, and Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 2, Paradise South 55 
Subdivision, as illustrated in the following table:  56 
 57 

Property Description (Lots in 
Paradise South Subdivision): 

Allocation of 
Estimated Cost

Lot 1, Block 1 $7,400 

Lot 4, Block 1 $7,400 

Lot 1, Block 2 $7,400 

Lot 2, Block 2 $7,400 

Lot 3, Block 2 $7,400 

  Total Estimated Cost $37,000 
 58 
 Section 3.  The City Council authorizes the City to reimburse the owner of Lot 3, Block 59 
2, Paradise South Subdivision the portion of the actual cost (whether greater or less than the 60 
estimated cost stated herein) of design and construction of the sewer main extension that 61 
benefits Lots 1 and 4, Block 1, and Lots 1 and 2, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision. The 62 
estimated total amount of the reimbursement is $29,600.  HAWSP Funds shall be used to 63 
make this reimbursement:  64 
 65 
 Expenditure: 66 
 Account No.    Description     Amount  67 
 205-375   HAWSP Funds Paradise Place  $29,600 68 
     Sewer Main Extension 69 
 70 

98



Page 3 of 4 
ORDINANCE 13-43 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

 

 Section 4.  Lot 4, Block 1, and Lot 2, Block 2, Paradise South Subdivision shall be 71 
subject to deferred assessments in an amount equal to one-fifth of the actual cost (whether 72 
greater or less than the estimated cost stated herein) of design and construction of the sewer 73 
main extension.  A deferred assessment shall be due and payable when the owner of the lot 74 
applies for a connection permit to receive City sewer service. 75 
 76 
 Section 5.  This ordinance is not permanent in nature, and shall not be codified. 77 
 78 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 79 
______________ 2013.  80 
 81 
       CITY OF HOMER 82 
 83 
 84 
       _____________________ 85 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  86 
 87 
ATTEST:  88 
 89 
 90 
___________________________ 91 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  92 
 93 
 94 
 95 
YES:  96 
NO:  97 
ABSTAIN:  98 
ABSENT:  99 
 100 
 101 
 102 
 103 
First Reading: 104 
Public Hearing: 105 
Second Reading: 106 
Effective Date:   107 
 108 
 109 

99



Page 4 of 4 
ORDINANCE 13-43 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

 

Reviewed and approved as to form. 110 
 111 
    112 
Walt Wrede, City Manager  Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 113 
 114 
Date:    Date:   115 
 116 
 117 
Fiscal Note:  Estimated project cost design and construction of the sewer main extension is 118 
$37,000 with the portion of the cost that is allocated to four of the benefitted properties paid 119 
for by the HAWSP ($29,600).  Two benefitted properties will be subject to deferred 120 
assessments; that will be borne by HAWSP until the owner of the lot applies for a connection 121 
permit to receive City sewer service. 122 

100



 

Memorandum 13-150 
 
To:  Walt Wrede, City Manager 
 
From:  Dan Gardner, PW Inspector 
 
Date:  October 15, 2013 
 
Subject: Proposed Paradise Place Sewer Main Extension 
  From Spencer Drive East for 700 Lineal Feet 
  Approval to Create Deferred Assessments on Benefitted Properties 
              
 
A property owner on Paradise Place is in need of replacing their on-site sewer system, and 
desires to connect to the City sewer collection system.  The referenced lot is identified as Lot 
#1 Delehanty on the attached map.  A 700 foot sewer mainline extension would be required 
for this lot to have sewer service.  The owner has made contact with all but four lot owners in 
the area north and west of their lot and there is not anyone that is interested in participating 
in a sewer LID.  Based on this information, the owners of Lot #1 have pursued a design for the 
700 foot extension and also have a cost estimate for the extension and are ready to pursue 
construction. 
 
When the proposed 700 foot extension is completed, there will be a total of 5 benefitting 
properties.  One of the properties would be owned by the “developer”, and identified on the 
attached map as Lot 1 Delehanty.  Two of the lots have active city sewer service and are 
identified as Lot #4 Springer and Lot #5 Schulz.  These two lots paid extension costs at the 
time of their connection, and the lots were considered “adjacent to the main” at the time of 
their connection.  Based on this fact, and the city attorney’s opinion, the city should pay for 
the extension costs for the main along these two lots.  The remaining two lots are Lot #2 
Anderson and lot #3 Lucas, neither of which are interested in connecting at this time. 
 
Homer City Code does provide for a method that allows a “developer” who extends a main to 
be reimbursed by benefitting properties when connections are made.  The method is seldom 
utilized because it requires considerable upfront documentation, only applies to connections 
made within 10 years, and the situation is difficult to monitor after construction is complete. 
 
Another approach to this situation, used in the past as recently as 2007 on Fairview Avenue 
and again in 2009 on Fairview Avenue, is for the City to reimburse the “developer” for the 
costs of extending that portion of main that benefits others and create deferred assessments 

101



Page 2 of 2 
MEMORANDUM 13-150 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
(based on fairly apportioned construction costs) on benefited properties.  These assessments 
are due and payable to the City, only if and when connection permit applications are made. 
 
Below is a cost estimate and methodology approach for deferred assessments: 
 
The lot owner needing service (Lot #1 on attached map) is required to extend the sewer main 
from Spencer Drive, west to the western edge of their property to be eligible for sewer service 
(approximately 700 feet).  This proposed extension would front and benefit Lot numbers 2, 3, 
4, and 5 in addition to the “developer’s” lot. 
 
The total cost of design and construction would then be shared equally between the 5 
benefitting properties. 
 

Estimated Cost Responsibility 
 

Lot #1   $ 7400 
Lot #2   $ 7400 
Lot #3   $ 7400 
Lot #4   $ 7400 
Lot #5   $ 7400 
 Total Cost = $ 37,000 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Council authorize expenditure of Homer Accelerated Water & Sewer Program (HAWSP) 
funds for construction of the proposed Paradise Place Sewer Main Extension, and approve 
the creation of deferred assessments on benefitted properties.  The owner of Lot #1 (see 
attached map) will initially cover all costs associated with design and construction.  As soon 
as the improvements are installed and approved, the City will reimburse the owner the value 
of the deferred assessments based on the actual, documented design and construction costs 
and according to the cost share table referenced above. 

102



103



104



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-44 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Appropriating Funds for the Calendar Year 
2014 for the General Fund, the Water-Sewer Fund, the Port/Harbor Fund, Debt Funds, and 
Capital Reserve Funds (Conditional Expenditures).  
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Introduction 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106



 
 

CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

    City Manager   3 
ORDINANCE 13-44 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2014 FOR 7 
THE GENERAL FUND, THE WATER-SEWER FUND, THE 8 
PORT/HARBOR FUND, DEBT FUNDS, AND CAPITAL RESERVE 9 
FUNDS (CONDITIONAL EXPENDITURES). 10 
 11 

 THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS:  12 
 13 
 Section 1. Pursuant to the authority of Alaska Statute, Title 29, the appropriations for 14 
Calendar Year ending December 2014 are appropriated as follows: 15 
 16 
 General Fund       $11,836,954 17 
 Water-Sewer Fund     $   3,801,211 18 
 Port/Harbor Fund     $   4,678,077 19 
 Capital Projects     $         62,000 20 
 Internal Service Funds    $   2,377,175  21 
  22 
 Total Expenditures                           $ 22,755,417 23 
 24 
 Section 2. Such amounts are appropriated to the objects and purposes stated in the 25 
adopted budget. 26 
 27 
 Section 3. A copy of the budget shall be certified by the City Clerk and filed in the 28 
Office of the City Clerk. 29 
 30 
 Section 4. The supporting Line Item Budget detail as presented by the Administration 31 
and reviewed by the City Council is incorporated as part of this Budget Ordinance. 32 
 33 
 Section 5. The property tax mill levy is set at 4.5 mills for 2014. 34 
 35 
 Section 6. This Ordinance is limited to approval of the Budget and appropriations for 36 
Calendar Year 2014, is a non code Ordinance and shall become effective January 1, 2014. 37 
 38 
 PASSED AND ENACTED by the Homer City Council on this _____ day of December, 39 
2013. 40 
             41 
        42 

107



Page 2 of 2 
ORDINANCE 13-44 
CITY OF HOMER 
 
 

 
 

       CITY OF HOMER 43 
 44 
 45 
       ____________________  46 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 47 
ATTEST: 48 
 49 
 50 
___________________________  51 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 52 
 53 
 54 
Introduction:  55 
Public Hearing:  56 
Second Reading:  57 
Effective Date:  58 
 59 
 60 
AYES:  61 
NOES:  62 
ABSTAIN:  63 
ABSENT:  64 
 65 
 66 
Reviewed and approved as to form: 67 
 68 
___________________________     ____________________________  69 
Walt Wrede, City Manager      Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney  70 
 71 
Date: ______________________    Date: _______________________ 72 
 73 
 74 
 75 
Fiscal Note: See Line Item Budget and detail. 76 

108



CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Clerk 3 
RESOLUTION 13-107 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
MAINTAINING THE CITY OF HOMER FEE SCHEDULE AT THE 7 
CURRENT RATES.  8 

 9 
 WHEREAS, Fees are reviewed annually during the budget cycle; and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS, It was determined there were no rate adjustments to the City of Homer Fee 12 
Schedule at this time. 13 
 14 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby maintains the City of 15 
Homer Fee Schedule at the current rates. 16 
 17 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Homer, Alaska, this _____ day of 18 
December, 2013.      19 

 20 
CITY OF HOMER 21 

              22 
        _____________________ 23 
        MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 24 
ATTEST: 25 
 26 
___________________________ 27 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 28 
 29 
Fiscal Note: N/A 30 

109



110



CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Clerk 3 
RESOLUTION 13-108 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
MAINTAINING THE PORT OF HOMER TERMINAL TARIFF NO. 600 7 
AT THE CURRENT RATES.  8 

 9 
 WHEREAS, Fees are reviewed annually during the budget cycle; and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS, It was determined there were no adjustments to the Port of Homer 12 
Terminal Tariff No. 600 at this time. 13 
 14 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby maintains the Port of 15 
Homer Terminal Tariff No. 600 at the current rates. 16 
 17 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Homer, Alaska, this _____ day of 18 
December, 2013.      19 

 20 
CITY OF HOMER 21 

              22 
        _____________________ 23 
        MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 24 
ATTEST: 25 
 26 
___________________________ 27 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 28 
 29 
Fiscal Note: N/A 30 

111



112



CITY OF HOMER 1 

HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Clerk/ 3 

Port and Harbor Director 4 

RESOLUTION 13-109 5 

 6 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE 7 

BID FOR THE PORT AND HARBOR SURPLUS DOCK FENDERS TO 8 

THE FIRM OF ALASKA MARINE EXCAVATION LLC OF ANCHOR 9 

POINT, ALASKA, IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,500.00 AND 10 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 11 

APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS.  12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, In accordance with the Procurement Policy the Invitation to Bid was 14 

advertised in the Homer News on September 26 and October 3, 2013, and posted on the 15 

Clerk's home page; and  16 

 17 

WHEREAS, Bids were due on October 10, 2013 and three bids were received; and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, Bids were opened and the firm of Alaska Marine Excavation LLC of Anchor 20 

Point, Alaska, was determined to be the highest responsive bidder; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, This award is not final until written notification is received by Alaska 23 

Marine Excavation LLC from the City of Homer. 24 

 25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Homer, Alaska, approves 26 

the bid award for the Port and Harbor Surplus Dock Fenders to the firm of Alaska Marine 27 

Excavation LLC of Anchor Point, Alaska, in the amount of $25,500.00 and authorizes the City 28 

Manager to execute the appropriate documents. 29 

 30 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council this 28th day of October, 2013. 31 

 32 

      CITY OF HOMER 33 

 34 

 35 

      _____________________ 36 

      MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 37 

ATTEST: 38 

 39 

 40 

___________________________ 41 

JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 42 

113



Page 2 of 2 
RESOLUTION 13-109 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

Fiscal Note: $25,500 Revenue for Port and Harbor. 43 

 44 

114



115



116



117



118



 
 
 
 
 
 

VISITORS

119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
PRESENTATIONS 

BOROUGH REPORT 
COMMISSION REPORTS

127



128



CITY OF HOMER 
HOMER, ALASKA 

 

MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION 
 

EXTRA MILE DAY 
November 1, 2013 

 
 WHEREAS, Homer, Alaska, is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy exists 
within the entire community when its individual citizens collectively “go the extra mile” in personal 
effort, volunteerism, and service; and 

 WHEREAS, Homer, Alaska, is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their 
personal contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly and with total effort, 
commitment, and conviction to their individual ambitions, family, friends, and community; and 

 WHEREAS, Homer, Alaska, is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate 
individuals and organizations within its community who “go the extra mile” in order to make a 
difference and lift up fellow members of their community; and 

 WHEREAS, Started in 2009 by Founder Shawn Anderson’s vision that one person CAN make a 
difference, Extra Mile Day has grown from 23 participating cities in its inaugural year, to 116 in 2010, to 
228 in 2011, to 362 in 2012, and this year a goal of 400 cities has been set. 

 WHEREAS, The City of Homer is proud to support Extra Mile Day on November 1, 2013. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mary E. Wythe, Mayor of Homer, Alaska, do hereby proclaim November 1, 
2013 to be Extra Mile Day. I urge each individual in the community to take time on this day to not only 
“go the extra mile” in his or her own life, but to also acknowledge all those around who are 
inspirational in their efforts and commitment to make their organizations, families, community, 
country, or world a better place. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Homer, 
Alaska, to be affixed this 28th day of October, 2013. 
 
       CITY OF HOMER 
 
 
       ___________________ 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________ 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 

129



130



 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING(S)

131



132



133



134



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-39 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and Appropriating a Land and 
Water Conservation Fund Grant from the State of Alaska Division of Parks and Outdoor 
Recreation in the Amount of $75,000 and Appropriating the Required Local Match in the 
Amount of $75,000 for Improvements to Karen Hornaday Park and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents.   
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 14, 2013 Introduction 
 
2. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

135



 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

136



CITY OF HOMER 1 

HOMER, ALASKA 2 

    City Manager 3 

ORDINANCE 13-39 4 

 5 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 

ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING A LAND AND WATER 7 

CONSERVATION FUND GRANT FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA 8 

DIVISION OF PARKS AND OUTDOOR RECREATION IN THE 9 

AMOUNT OF $75,000 AND APPROPRIATING THE REQUIRED 10 

LOCAL MATCH IN THE AMOUNT OF $75,000 FOR IMPROVEMENTS 11 

TO KAREN HORNADAY PARK AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 12 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS.   13 

 14 

WHEREAS, The City of Homer submitted an application for a Land and Water 15 

Conservation Fund Grant for improvements to Karen Hornaday Park; and 16 

 17 

WHEREAS, The grant was awarded in the amount of $75,000 and a local match of 18 

$75,000 is required. 19 

 20 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 21 

 22 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby accepts and appropriates a Land and Water 23 

Conservation Fund Grant for improvements to Karen Hornaday Park as follows and herby 24 

authorizes the City Manager to execute the appropriate documents: 25 

 26 

Revenue: 27 

Account  Description     Amount 28 

151-0776  Land and Water Conservation   $75,000   29 

   Fund Grant   30 

 31 

Expenditure: 32 

Account  Description     Amount 33 

151-0776  Land and Water Conservation  $75,000 34 

   Fund Grant  35 

  36 

 37 

137



Page 2 of 3 
ORDINANCE 13‐39 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

Section 2.  The City Council hereby appropriates the required matching funds from the 38 

General Fund Balance as follows: 39 

 40 

Expenditure: 41 

Account  Description     Amount 42 

100-0375  Local Match     $75,000 43 

 44 

Section 3. This is a budget amendment ordinance, is temporary in nature, and shall 45 

not be codified. 46 

 47 

 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL of Homer, Alaska, this ____ day of ___________, 2013. 48 

 49 

        CITY OF HOMER 50 

 51 

 52 

 53 

       ________________________ 54 

       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 55 

ATTEST: 56 

 57 

 58 

  59 

_______________________________ 60 

JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 61 

 62 

 63 

 64 

 65 

YES: 66 

NO: 67 

ABSTAIN: 68 

ABSENT: 69 

 70 

 71 

First Reading: 72 

Public Hearing: 73 

Second Reading: 74 

Effective Date: 75 

 76 

 77 

 78 

138



Page 3 of 3 
ORDINANCE 13‐39 
CITY OF HOMER 

 

Reviewed and approved as to form: 79 

 80 

__________________________     ____________________________ 81 

Walt Wrede, City Manager      Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 82 

 83 

Date: _____________________     Date: ________________________ 84 

 85 

Fiscal Note: Fiscal information included in body of Ordinance. 86 

139



140



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-40 
 

An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Amending HCC 7.04.010, State Statutes Adopted by 
Reference, HCC 7.04.020, Copies of State Traffic Code on File, HCC 7.04.030, Violation—
Penalty, HCC 7.08.010, Compliance with State Law, HCC 7.08.045, Handicapped Parking, HCC 
7.08.058, Removal of Impoundment Notice, and HCC 10.04.110, Violation—Penalty; and 
Repealing HCC 7.04.023, State Schedule of Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture—
Adopted, HCC 7.04.025, State Schedule of Minor Traffic Offenses and Bail Forfeiture--Conflict 
with General Penalty, HCC 7.06.100, Penalty and Fine Schedule, HCC 7.08.060, Violation—
Penalty, HCC 7.20.010, Compliance with State Law, HCC 7.20.080, Violation—Penalty, HCC 
Chapter 24, Traffic Violation Mandatory Sentences, and HCC 7.28.060, Violation; Penalty; to 
Establish a Consolidated Traffic Fine Schedule.  
 
Sponsor: City Clerk 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 14, 2013 Introduction 
 
2. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

141



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

142



[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Clerk 3 
ORDINANCE 13-40 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL, AMENDING HCC 6 
7.04.010, STATE STATUTES ADOPTED BY REFERENCE, HCC 7 
7.04.020, COPIES OF STATE TRAFFIC CODE ON FILE, HCC 8 
7.04.030, VIOLATION—PENALTY, HCC 7.08.010, COMPLIANCE 9 
WITH STATE LAW, HCC 7.08.045, HANDICAPPED PARKING, HCC 10 
7.08.058, REMOVAL OF IMPOUNDMENT NOTICE, HCC 7.08.060, 11 
VIOLATION—PENALTY, HCC 7.28.060, VIOLATION; PENALTY, AND 12 
HCC 10.04.110, VIOLATION—PENALTY; AND REPEALING HCC 13 
7.04.023, STATE SCHEDULE OF MINOR TRAFFIC OFFENSES AND 14 
BAIL FORFEITURE—ADOPTED, HCC 7.04.025, STATE SCHEDULE 15 
OF MINOR TRAFFIC OFFENSES AND BAIL FORFEITURE—16 
CONFLICT WITH GENERAL PENALTY, HCC 7.06.100, PENALTY AND 17 
FINE SCHEDULE, HCC 7.20.010, COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW, 18 
HCC 7.20.080, VIOLATION—PENALTY, AND HCC CHAPTER 24, 19 
TRAFFIC VIOLATION MANDATORY SENTENCES; TO REVISE AND 20 
UPDATE CITY VEHICLE AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS AND 21 
ESTABLISH A CONSOLIDATED TRAFFIC FINE SCHEDULE. 22 
 23 

THE CITY OF HOMER HEREBY ORDAINS: 24 
 25 

Section 1.  HCC 7.04.010, State statutes adopted by reference, is amended to read as 26 
follows: 27 
 28 

7.04.010 State statutes adopted by reference.  Pursuant to AS 28.01.010, the city 29 
adopts by reference the following state statutes and regulations:  30 

13 AAC 02.005 through 13 AAC 02.560, inclusive (motor vehicle and driving offenses: 31 
rules of the road);  32 

13 AAC 04.001 through 13 AAC 04.420, inclusive (motor vehicle and driving offenses: 33 
vehicle equipment and inspection);  34 

13 AAC 40.010 (definitions); 35 
AS 28.05.095 (use of seat belts and child safety devices required);  36 
AS 28.10.451 (failure to register vehicle);  37 
AS 28.10.461 (driving vehicle without evidence of registration);  38 
AS 28.10.471 (driving vehicle when registration suspended, revoked or permit 39 

expired);  40 
AS 28.11 (abandoned vehicles);  41 
AS 28.15.131 (license to be carried and exhibited on demand);  42 

143



Page 2 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

AS 28.22.019 (proof of insurance to be carried and exhibited on demand);  43 
AS 28.35.235 (unauthorized use of parking reserved for persons with disabilities);  44 
AS 28.39.010 (snowmobile registration);  45 
AS 28.39.040 (display of snowmobile registration);  46 
AS 28.90.990 (definitions). 47 

All laws of the State of Alaska and any rule or regulation adopted by any duly authorized 48 
agency of the State of Alaska pertaining to motor vehicles, their licensing, safety measures, 49 
rules of the road, and any and all other rules and regulations pertaining to motor vehicles are 50 
incorporated into this chapter and made a part of this chapter by reference and the violation 51 
of any such law, rule or regulation shall constitute an offense under this Code.  52 
 53 

Section 2.  HCC 7.04.020, Copies of State Traffic Code on file, is amended to read as 54 
follows: 55 
 56 

7.04.020 Copies of title State Traffic Code on file.  A copy of this title, including all state 57 
statutes and regulations incorporated herein, Title 13 AAC, the State Traffic Code, shall be 58 
incorporated in a manual placed in City Hall and be available for inspection by the general 59 
public at city hall during business hours, and copies shall be available for purchase by the 60 
public at cost for perusal by interested persons.  61 
 62 

Section 3.  HCC 7.04.023, State schedule of minor traffic offenses and bail forfeiture—63 
Adopted, and HCC 7.04.025, State schedule of minor traffic offenses and bail forfeiture--64 
Conflict with general penalty, are repealed. 65 
 66 

Section 4.  HCC 7.04.030, Violation—Penalty, is amended to read as follows: 67 
 68 

7.04.030 Traffic fine schedules Violation--Penalty.  a. For violations of statutes and 69 
regulations listed in HCC 7.04.010, the city adopts as its traffic fine schedule the schedule of 70 
minor traffic offenses and bail forfeiture amounts contained in Rule 43.1 of the Alaska Rules 71 
of Administration.  72 

b. For violations of provisions of this title other than statutes and regulations listed in 73 
HCC 7.04.010, the city adopts the following traffic fine schedule:  74 
 75 

Code Section Code Section Title Fine per Day 

7.06.010(b) Muffler not working properly Corr/$500 
7.06.010(c) Muffler modified/excessive noise Corr/$500 
7.06.010(d) Muffler removed or inoperative Corr/$500 
7.06.010(e)(1) 
or (e)(2) 

Noise exceeds limits first violation $100;  
second violation within 

6 months of first 
conviction $200;  

third violation within 6 

144



Page 3 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

months of any prior 
conviction $300 

7.06.010(e)(3) Sale of vehicle exceeding noise limits first violation $100;  
second violation within 

6 months of first 
conviction $200;  

third violation within 6 
months of any prior 

conviction $300 
7.06.020 Jake brake use prohibited First violation $100 

Second violation within 
6 months of first 
conviction $200 plus 
proof of satisfactory 
Homer PD 
commercial vehicle 
inspection 

Third violation within 6 
months of any prior 
conviction $300 plus 
proof of satisfactory 
Homer PD 
commercial vehicle 
inspection 

7.08.020  Stopping or parking—Where prohibited  $25.00 
7.08.021  Starting parked vehicles $100.00 
7.08.030  Stopping or parking—Size limitation $25.00 
7.08.040  Stopping or parking—Time limitation $25.00 
7.08.045  Unauthorized use of parking reserved for 

persons with disabilities 
first violation $125;  
second violation $250  

7.08.045  Unauthorized use of parking reserved for 
persons with disabilities while displaying 
special license plate or permit 

first violation $250;  
second violation $500  

7.08.058  Removal of impoundment notice or 
impounded vehicle prohibited 

$300.00 

7.20.030  Use of snowmachines $300.00 
7.20.040  Time restriction $300.00 
7.20.050  Driver's license requirement $300.00 
7.20.055  Operation in designated areas $300.00 
7.20.060  Towing $300.00 
7.28.020  Motor vehicle parking $30.00 
7.28.030  Short-term parking area $30.00 

145



Page 4 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

7.28.040  Limited long-term parking area $30.00 
7.28.050  Reserved parking $30.00 
10.04.100(b) Restricted parking in harbor $25.00 

 76 
A citation for an offense listed as "Corr" must be dismissed (or voided) if proof of correction is 77 
presented to a Homer police department vehicle inspector within 30 days. If the required 78 
repair is not made and shown to a vehicle inspector within the specified time, the offense 79 
may be disposed of without court appearance as provided in (c) of this section. 80 

c. A person cited for an offense for which a fine is established in subsection (a) or (b) of 81 
this section may mail or personally deliver to the Finance Director the amount of the fine 82 
indicated on the citation for the offense plus any surcharge required to be imposed by AS 83 
12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074, together with a copy of the citation signed by the person 84 
indicating the person’s waiver of court appearance, entry of plea of no contest, and forfeiture 85 
of the fine. A citation for a scheduled offense may be mailed or personally delivered within 86 
fifteen (15) days after the date of the citation. The payment of a fine under this subsection 87 
shall be treated as a judgment of conviction. The fine paid is complete satisfaction for the 88 
offense.  If a person cited for an offense for which a fine amount is established in subsection 89 
(a) or (b) of this section appears in court to contest the citation and is found guilty, the 90 
maximum sentence which may be imposed is the scheduled fine amount plus any surcharge 91 
required to be imposed by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. 92 

The violation of any provision contained in this chapter shall be punished under 93 
Section 1.16.010. 94 
 95 

Section 5.  HCC 7.06.100, Penalty and fine schedule, is repealed. 96 
 97 

Section 6.  HCC 7.08.045, Handicapped parking, is amended to read as follows: 98 
 99 

7.08.045 Unauthorized use of parking reserved for persons with disabilities 100 
Handicapped parking.  a. A person may not park or cause to be parked a motor vehicle in a 101 
parking space reserved for a person with a disability disabled or medically handicapped 102 
persons, whether such parking space is on public or private property, unless: 103 

1. the person operating the vehicle has a special permit issued by the State of 104 
Alaska under AS 28.10.495; 105 

2. the person operating the vehicle has parked the vehicle for the purpose of 106 
transporting a person who as a special permit issued by the State of Alaska under AS 107 
28.10.495 and the person who has the special permit actually exits or enters the 108 
vehicle; 109 

3. the motor vehicle displays a special license plate issued to a person with a 110 
disability disabled or handicapped persons under AS 28.10.181(d) and is operated by 111 
or used for the purpose of transporting a person with a disability; or 112 

43. the motor vehicle displays a special license plate or permit issued to 113 
persons with disabilities disabled or handicapped persons by another state, province, 114 

146



Page 5 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

territory, or country and is operated by or used for the purpose of transporting a 115 
person with a disability. 116 
b. Any police officer or parking enforcement officer may enforce this section within 117 

any public or private parking area by issuing a citation pursuant to subsection (d) of this 118 
section, or within any public parking area by causing the vehicle parked in violation of this 119 
section to be immediately removed as provided by HCC 7.08.050. Only a person who owns or 120 
controls a private parking area containing a parking space reserved for a person with a 121 
disability reserved handicapped-only parking space may cause the vehicle parked in 122 
violation of this section to be removed and towed as provided in HCC 7.08.050. 123 

c. For purposes of this section, a "parking space reserved for a person with a disability 124 
handicapped parking only" is a parking space conspicuously signed as being reserved for 125 
restricted to vehicles displaying a special permit or special license plate described in (a) of 126 
this section handicapped parking permits, provided that such signs shall, as far as 127 
practicable, conform to the current edition of the Alaska Traffic Manual on Uniform Traffic 128 
Control Devices prepared by the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. 129 
Notice of the specific penalty for violating this section shall be posted on the face of all signs 130 
erected within the City. 131 

d. The penalty for violating this section shall be one hundred dollars for each citation 132 
issued. 133 

e. The officer responding to an apparent violation may excuse a violation of 134 
subsection a. of this section if the officer finds that the person who parked, or caused to be 135 
parked, in a reserved handicapped parking spot is actually or recently handicapped or is a 136 
handicapped visitor of outside the City. 137 
 138 

Section 7.  HCC 7.08.058, Removal of Impoundment Notice of Impounded Vehicle 139 
Prohibited, is amended to read as follows: 140 
 141 

7.08.058 Removal of Impoundment Notice or of Impounded Vehicle Prohibited.  a. 142 
Unless authorized by a police officer or peace officer with authority to enforce parking laws 143 
and regulations, it is unlawful for any person to remove an impoundment order from a 144 
vehicle upon which it has been posted. 145 

b. Unless authorized by a police officer or peace officer with authority to enforce 146 
parking laws and regulations, it is unlawful for any person to move a vehicle after it has been 147 
posted with an impoundment order. 148 

c. A violation of this section shall be punished pursuant to section 1.16.010 of this 149 
code. 150 
 151 

Section 8.  HCC 7.08.060, Violation—penalty, is amended to read as follows: 152 
 153 

7.08.060 Citation Violation—penalty.  A police officer may issue a citation for a vehicle 154 
parked, stopped or standing in violation of this chapter, and deliver it to the operator of the 155 
vehicle or affix it to the vehicle if the vehicle is unattended at the time of issuance. Unless 156 

147



Page 6 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

another penalty is expressly provided, the penalty for violating provisions of this chapter are 157 
the same as those listed in the State of Alaska Traffic Bail Forfeiture Schedule pursuant to 158 
Rule 43.1 of the Administrative Rules of the Alaska Rules of Court for violation of 13 AAC 159 
02.340 through 13.AAC 02.337. 160 
 161 

Section 9.  HCC 7.20.010, Compliance with state law, is repealed. 162 
 163 

Section 10.  HCC 7.20.080, Violation—penalty, is repealed. 164 
 165 

Section 11.  HCC Chapter 24, Traffic Violation Mandatory Sentences, is repealed. 166 
 167 

Section 12.  HCC 7.28.060, Violation; Penalty, is amended to read as follows: 168 
 169 

7.28.060 Citation Violation; Penalty.  A police officer may issue a citation for a vehicle 170 
parked, stopped or standing in violation of this chapter, and deliver it to the operator of the 171 
vehicle or affix it to the vehicle if the vehicle is unattended at the time of issuance.  Any 172 
violation of this chapter is unlawful and shall be punished under city code 1.16.010. 173 
 174 

Section 13.  HCC 10.04.110, Violation—Penalty is amended to read as follows: 175 
 176 
10.04.110 Violation—Penalty. a. Except as provided in HCC 7.04.030 (b) of this section, 177 

any violation of the provisions contained in this title or regulations adopted pursuant to this 178 
title shall be unlawful and punishable as provided in Section 1.16.010 of this Code. 179 

b. A violation of HCC 10.04.100(b) is amenable to disposition without court 180 
appearance upon payment of a fine in the amount of $25.00. The person cited for the 181 
violation may mail or personally deliver to the City Finance Department the amount of the 182 
fine plus any surcharge required to be imposed by AS 29.25.074, together with a copy of the 183 
citation signed by the person indicating the person’s waiver of court appearance, entry of 184 
plea of no contest, and forfeiture of the fine. The payment of a fine under this subsection shall 185 
be treated as a judgment of conviction. The fine paid is complete satisfaction for the offense. 186 
If a person cited for a violation of HCC 10.04.100(b) appears in court to contest the citation 187 
and is found guilty, the maximum sentence which may be imposed is the scheduled fine 188 
amount plus any surcharge required to be imposed by AS 29.25.074.  189 
 190 

Section 14.  This Ordinance is of a permanent and general character and shall be 191 
included in the City Code. 192 
 193 

ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOMER, ALASKA, this _____ day of 194 
______________ 2013. 195 

 196 
 197 
 198 

148



Page 7 of 7 
ORDINANCE 13-40 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 

CITY OF HOMER 199 
 200 
 201 
______________________ 202 
MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 203 

 204 
ATTEST: 205 
 206 
 207 
___________________________ 208 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 209 
 210 
 211 
 212 
AYES: 213 
NOES: 214 
ABSTAIN: 215 
ABSENT: 216 
 217 
 218 
 219 
First Reading: 220 
Public Reading: 221 
Second Reading: 222 
Effective Date: 223 
 224 
 225 
Reviewed and approved as to form: 226 
 227 
 228 
              229 
Walt Wrede, City Manager     City Attorney 230 
 231 
Date: _________________________    Date: _________________________ 232 

149



150



ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2013 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 13-41 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Appropriating a U.S. Fish & Wildlife 
Learning Landscape Grant with 50% In-Kind Matching Requirement, Up to $25,000, for the 
Purpose of Completing Landscaping Improvements at Karen Hornaday Park Playground.  
 
Sponsor: City Manager/Public Works Director 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting October 14, 2013 Introduction 
 
 a. Memorandum 13-142 from Public Works Director as backup 
 b. Resolution 12-048 
 c. Project Number & Budget Form 
 
2. City Council Regular Meeting October 28, 2013 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 a. Memorandum 13-142 from Public Works Director as backup 
 b. Resolution 12-048 
 c. Project Number & Budget Form 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

151



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

152



CITY OF HOMER 1 

HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager/ 3 

Public Works Director 4 

ORDINANCE 13-41 5 

 6 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 7 

APPROPRIATING A U.S. FISH & WILDLIFE LEARNING LANDSCAPE 8 

GRANT WITH 50% IN-KIND MATCHING REQUIREMENT, UP TO 9 

$25,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF COMPLETING LANDSCAPING 10 

IMPROVEMENTS AT KAREN HORNADAY PARK PLAYGROUND. 11 

 12 

 WHEREAS, The City has been awarded a Learning Landscape Grant from the U.S. Fish 13 

and Wildlife in the amount of $25,000; and 14 

 15 

 WHEREAS, The City Council has approved the acceptance of this grant in Resolution 16 

12-048; and 17 

 18 

 WHEREAS, It is in the City’s best interest to appropriate the grant. 19 

 20 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF HOMER: 21 

 22 

Section 1. The Homer City Council hereby appropriates a Learning Landscape Grant 23 

from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife in the amount of $25,000 for completing landscaping 24 

improvements at the Karen Hornaday Park playground: 25 

 26 

 Account No.             Description                      Amount 27 

 28 

 151-776     Karen Hornaday Park   $25,000 29 

    Learning Landscape Grant        30 

 31 

Section 2.  This ordinance is a budget amendment only, is not of a permanent nature, 32 

and shall not be codified. 33 

 34 

 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOMER, ALASKA, this _____ day of 35 

______________ 2013. 36 

 37 

      CITY OF HOMER 38 

 39 

 40 

______________________ 41 

MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 42 

153



Page 2 of 2 
ORDINANCE 13-41 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

 43 

ATTEST: 44 

 45 

 46 

___________________________ 47 

JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 48 

 49 

 50 

 51 

AYES: 52 

NOES: 53 

ABSTAIN: 54 

ABSENT: 55 

 56 

 57 

 58 

First Reading: 59 

Public Reading: 60 

Second Reading: 61 

Effective Date: 62 

 63 

 64 

Reviewed and approved as to form: 65 

 66 

 67 

              68 

Walt Wrede, City Manager     City Attorney 69 

 70 

Date: _________________________    Date: _________________________ 71 

154



 

Memorandum 13-142 
 

TO:   Walt Wrede, City Manager 

FROM:   Carey Meyer, Public Works Director 

DATE:   Monday, October 7, 2013 

SUBJECT:  Karen Hornaday Park – U.S. Fish & Wildlife Learning Landscape Grant  
    Recommendation to Appropriate Funds 

 
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission has identified landscaping as a priority in 
implementing the Karen Hornaday Park master plan.  The Public Works pursued a 
cooperative agreement with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service for 50% match grant funding up 
to $25,000 for the installation of landscaping at the Karen Hornaday Park playground.  The 
grant has been accepted by the City (per Resolution 12-048). 

The City is working with the Center for Alaskan Coastal Studies (CACS) and the Homer 
Playground Project (HoPP) to plan and implement Learning Landscape improvements at 
Karen Hornaday Park, and obtain in-kind matching funds and donations.  Landscape work 
associated with the day use area such as soil tillage, grading, drainage, top soil, seeding, 
pathways, benches and work being completed at the new playground will qualify for in-kind 
match funds.  

The landscaping project will have a focus on local native plants with such themes as 
‘Pollinators,’ ‘Edible Plants,’ ‘Economic Benefits of Plants,’ ‘Exotic Beauty of Native and Non-
native Plants,’ ‘Plants of the Beach Dunes,’ ‘Wetland Habitat Plants’ and other themes to be 
developed. 

Other Partners:  The following partners have offered assistance: 

 Alaska Plant Materials Center 
 Cooperative Extension Service Habitat Specialist 
 Homer Soil and Water Conservation District 
 State of Alaska Div. of Forestry and Plant Nursery 
 Homer Area Nurseries 
 Gee Denton, Homer Landscape Designer 
 Homer Lions Club 
 Individuals – Plant Specialists 

155



Page 2 of 2 
MEMORANDUM 13-142 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
Recommendation:  The City Council pass an ordinance appropriating a Learning Landscape 
Grant from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife in the amount of $25,000; 50% of which will be matched 
with labor/material in-kind contributions from participating organizations and individuals. 

. 

 

156



157



DATE

GL Activity Task Number

Activity Task Name:

11/1/2013

Codes Expense Description Grant Budget Local Funds (if Required)

5101/2 Project -Salaries & Benefits

5202 Materials

5210 Professional Services

Project Management

Inspection

5212 Engr / Arch / Design

5216 Postage / Freight

5227 Advertising

5261 Construction 25,000.00                    41,365.00                   

5262 Contingency

5901 c/o Equipment, Furnishing  >$1,000

5903

25,000.00                    41,365.00                   

Approvals

Date

Date

Date

Resolution : Ordinance:

Project Number/Budget Scanned & E-mailed to:

City Clerk: Requesting Dept:

Scanned to "Y" drive:

(Rev 11/2012)

Date & Initial Date & Initial

Date & Intial Date & Initial

This section to be completed by Finance

USFWS grant ($25,000 grant with $25,000 in-kind match) See attached.

N/A

Requesting Department/Project Manager

c/o Buildings & Improve >$1,000

Project Budget

Funding Source(s):

City Manager

66,365.00$                             

CITY OF HOMER

 PROJECT NUMBER & BUDGET FORM

Project Description:

Project Name: Learning Landscape Improvements - Karen Hornaday Park

Project Start Date: 6/1/2013 Project End Date:

Special Project Number

This section to be completed by Finance

Create wildlife habitat and the opportunity for children and visitors to interact and learn about 

the importance of thesewildlife habitates.

Funding Budget Totals

TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET

Finance Department

Other Comments:

158



 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE(S)

159



160



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

161



162



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT

163



164



 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS

165



166



 
 
 
 
 
 

PENDING BUSINESS

167



168



 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS

169



170



 

 

 
Memorandum 13-149 

 
TO:  MAYOR WYTHE AND HOMER CITY COUNCIL 
FROM:  JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2013 
SUBJECT:  SELECTION/APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEMPORE FOR 2013/2014 
 
Per Homer City Code Section 1.24.080, Mayor's absence: At the first meeting of the Council 
following certification of the municipal election each year, there shall be appointed a Mayor 
Pro Tempore, by majority vote of Council, to act as Mayor during the Mayor's temporary 
absence or disability. 
 
Pursuant to Council's Operating Manual: A Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the majority of 
the Homer City Council. The term of the Mayor Pro Tem shall be until the call for election by 
the Homer City Council of a New Mayor Pro Tem. The Mayor Pro Tem shall, in the absence of 
the Mayor, act as Mayor of the City of Homer as though they themselves had taken the Oath 
of Office of Mayor with all duties, responsibilities and powers of the Office of the Mayor of the 
City of Homer. 
 
By tradition the Council has elected a new Mayor Pro Tem at the same annual meeting when 
newly elected officials are sworn in, with the exception of this year to accommodate 
schedules. The Mayor Pro Tem, when acting in that capacity, does not lose the privilege or 
duty to vote as a Councilmember. 
 
Secret Ballots are provided for your convenience and to be used as you deem necessary. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
____________________ is selected/appointed as Mayor Pro Tempore for the City of Homer 
for 2013/2014. 
 
Fiscal Note: N/A 

 
  

171



172



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS

173



174



 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 

COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

ADJOURNMENT

175



176


	Cover
	Calendar
	WORKSESSION AGENDA
	Manager's Budget Message
	Memo 13-137 Amendments to Health Insurance Plan
	Memo 13-138 Fire Department Budget Requests
	COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Minutes - September 23
	Minutes - October 14
	Memo 13-148 Appointments
	Memo 13-151 Liquor Licenses
	Ordinance 13-42
	Ordinance 13-43
	  Memo 13-150 as backup
	Ordinance 13-44
	Resolution 13-107
	Resolution 13-108
	Resolution 13-109
	  Memo 13-152 as backup
	VISITORS
	Chamber of Commerce
	ANNOUNCEMENTS
	Mayor's Proclamation - Extra Mile Day
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	PHN 102813
	Ordinance 13-39
	Ordinance 13-40
	Ordinance 13-41
	  Memo 13-142 as backup
	NEW BUSINESS
	Memo 13-149 Mayor Pro Tempore



